

1 SPECIAL HOUSE COMMITTEE ON REDISTRICTING  
2 PUBLIC HEARING  
3 APRIL 19, 2011

4  
5  
6 STENOGRAPHIC REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS  
7 had in the above-entitled matter at South Suburban  
8 College, 15800 South State Street, South Holland,  
9 Illinois, commencing at 4:50 o'clock p.m.

10

11 MEMBERS PRESENT:

12 REPRESENTATIVE BARBARA FLYNN CURRIE, Chair

13 REPRESENTATIVE KELLY BURKE

14 REPRESENTATIVE WILL DAVIS

15 REPRESENTATIVE ANTHONY DeLUCA

16 REPRESENTATIVE JIM DURKIN

17 REPRESENTATIVE THADDEUS JONES

18 REPRESENTATIVE SANDRA PIHOS

19 REPRESENTATIVE AL RILEY

20 REPRESENTATIVE BOB RITA

21 REPRESENTATIVE KAREN YARBROUGH

22

23 Reported By: April T. Hansen, CSR

24 License No.: 084-004043

25

1           REPRESENTATIVE YARBROUGH: Good evening. The  
2 House Special Committee on Redistricting shall come  
3 to order. My name is State Representative Karen  
4 Yarbrough and I'm a member of the Redistricting  
5 Committee and will be chairing the meeting today.

6                   I'd like to recognize the members of  
7 the Redistricting Committee that are with us  
8 today. On her way, Barbara Flynn Currie, and  
9 Representative Jim Durkin.

10                   I'd also like to recognize the other  
11 members of the General Assembly who are present  
12 today. Representative Kelly Burke, Representative  
13 Will Davis, Representative Sandy Pihos,  
14 Representative Dennis Rebelotti, Representative Al  
15 Riley, and Representative Bob Rita.

16                   I think we are in somebody's  
17 district. Representative Jones, would you like to  
18 have a word? Thaddeus Jones.

19           REPRESENTATIVE JONES: Hello. Just want to  
20 welcome everyone to the 29th District and to the  
21 wonderful South Suburban College. I look forward  
22 to having a good meeting and entertaining any  
23 questions. So I just want to welcome everyone to  
24 the 29th District. Thank you.

25           REPRESENTATIVE YARBROUGH: Thank you. And can

1 we hear from the minority.

2 REPRESENTATIVE DURKIN: Thank you,  
3 Representative Yarbrough. My name is Jim Durkin,  
4 I'm the State Representative from the 82nd  
5 District, southwest suburbs of Cook County, from  
6 Western Springs, Illinois. This is my second  
7 committee meeting, I was in Cicero on Saturday. I  
8 want to thank you, the members who are here, for  
9 attending this very important hearing.

10 Saturday was a good hearing. We are  
11 ready to hear the thoughts and desires of the men  
12 and women who live in the Cicero/Berwyn area in the  
13 west suburbs, because I think it's extremely  
14 important that the map drawers, as well as the  
15 party majority, gets as much information as they  
16 can throughout the state. We're having a  
17 significant amount of hearings throughout the  
18 state, we're doing it on a very aggressive schedule  
19 as well.

20 But we also think it's extremely  
21 important that the public is allowed an opportunity  
22 to provide their input and their thoughts as to  
23 where they think the legislative boundaries should  
24 be. This is a ten-year process, and every ten  
25 years we go through this. It's extremely

1 important, there is so much at stake.

2                   One thing we also think is very  
3 important is that prior to the map which is going  
4 to be taken into consideration in the legislature,  
5 we think it's very important that the public opines  
6 on the draft which is going to be presented to the  
7 legislature so they can have their input. We think  
8 that's also very important. And I would stress  
9 that with the men and women on this Committee, but  
10 also, the residents who are here today.

11                   But more importantly, this is going  
12 to be a transparent process and this is how we get  
13 there, by being open. And we are going to take all  
14 the thoughts into consideration, and we will make  
15 sure that all the considerations on the Voting  
16 Rights Act are taken into thought. But most  
17 importantly, this is about transparency and this is  
18 a very, very important, one of the most important  
19 things we do as a legislature.

20                   So as I said earlier, we had a very  
21 good meeting, and with the Majority Leader Currie,  
22 who has joined us today, and she ran a very good  
23 meeting and I'm quite confident she will do it  
24 again. We will make sure everyone's thoughts are  
25 put into the record, and this is the type of

1 situation where we believe that more is better. So  
2 don't feel shy or bashful about coming up and  
3 providing your thoughts and comments. Thank you.

4 REPRESENTATIVE YARBROUGH: And thank you, sir.

5 So I would like to welcome everyone  
6 and thank all of you for taking time out of your  
7 schedules and being here. As Representative Durkin  
8 indicated, this is really important business and  
9 we're here in your area to do this business.

10 So at the end of 2010 the United  
11 States Census Bureau, as it does every decade,  
12 released its 2010 population totals for Illinois.  
13 The United States and the Illinois Constitution  
14 required that in the year following the census the  
15 General Assembly shall re-draw the boundary lines  
16 of the congressional, legislative, and  
17 representative districts to account for the  
18 population shifts over the past ten years. These  
19 hearings are a part of that process.

20 The Redistricting Transparency and  
21 Public Participation Act requires us to hold at  
22 least four hearings throughout the state. Our  
23 intention is to hold far more than that minimum  
24 number. Our goal is to hear from as many people as  
25 possible, and to insure that this process is open

1 to all residents of the state.

2 We are holding hearings throughout  
3 the state -- 15 currently are scheduled -- to gain  
4 as much information as possible as we undertake  
5 this important task. We are guided in this  
6 endeavor by the US Constitution which requires that  
7 we respect the "one person, one vote" principle,  
8 and draw districts of substantially equal  
9 population.

10 We will also comply with the Federal  
11 Voting Rights Act, which requires us to provide  
12 minorities an equal opportunity to participate in  
13 the electoral process and elect candidates of their  
14 choice.

15 At the city level, the Illinois  
16 Constitution requires that districts be  
17 substantially equal in population, compact, and  
18 contiguous. Finally, the Illinois Voting Rights  
19 Act further requires us to allow minorities a voice  
20 in the electoral process after compliance with the  
21 Federal and Constitutional requirements I have just  
22 described.

23 Now, in addition to these legal  
24 requirements, there are countless other factors  
25 that play a role in the redistricting process, and

1 we want to hear from you in considering all of them  
2 without limitation. We are interested in any  
3 relevant demographic information such as social,  
4 political, economic, religious, and any other  
5 characteristics that are unique to your community  
6 or to your organizations. We are interested in  
7 maps of your community or organizations as  
8 encompassed by relevant precincts or voter  
9 tabulation districts or however you want to present  
10 them.

11 We want to hear your specific views  
12 on any social, political, economic or religious  
13 interests commonly held in your community. Any  
14 specific interest groups that exist, any concerns  
15 you have regarding current redistricting  
16 boundaries, and suggestions for the drawing of the  
17 new boundaries.

18 In short, we want to hear any  
19 testimony that is relevant to the drawing of our  
20 new congressional, legislative or representative  
21 districts. If you have a proposed map, we'll take  
22 it and consider it. If you want to draw your own  
23 map but lack the capacity to do so, we have created  
24 two public viewing stations where census and map  
25 making resources will be made available. One is

1 located in Springfield in Room 401 of the Straton  
2 Building, open Monday through Friday from 8:30 to  
3 4:30 p.m. The second work station, a joint effort  
4 with the Senate Redistricting Committee, is located  
5 on the seventh floor of the Balandic Building  
6 located at 160 North LaSalle in Chicago.

7 You can schedule an appointment to  
8 access either public station by calling (217)  
9 558-3036. That number again is (217) 558-3036.

10 You may also submit any comments,  
11 information, or proposed maps to us in-person at  
12 these viewing stations. Finally, you may submit  
13 any information or comments to us by e-mailing us  
14 at ILRedistricting@gmail.com. That's  
15 ILRedistricting@gmail.com.

16 We will transcribe the testimony at  
17 these hearings and post that testimony on our  
18 website. Any documentary evidence we receive, be  
19 it written testimony or data or proposed maps, will  
20 also be uploaded on our website. Our only caveat  
21 is that due to security concerns, we will not  
22 accept maps on a disk or a flash drive. We ask for  
23 a hard copy of that map.

24 As for today, we will begin with a  
25 short slide show presentation. Following that



1 brief presentation we have a number of witnesses  
2 who have indicated in advance a desire to testify  
3 and we will hear from them first.

4                   Given the number of interested  
5 parties we ask that each witness limit their  
6 testimony to five minutes. We will bring witnesses  
7 forward in groups, and if you have written  
8 testimony prepared we just simply ask that you  
9 submit that testimony to us and briefly summarize  
10 it in your oral presentation. We would not like  
11 you to bring your testimony in and read it, we  
12 would like you to summarize it.

13                   After the scheduled witnesses,  
14 anybody else who would like to speak may do so.  
15 Each witness needs to fill out a witness slip  
16 stating their intentions to provide testimony for  
17 the record. If you have not done so, please return  
18 to the sign-in table where you first came in and  
19 make our staff aware that you wish to fill out one  
20 of these witness slips. It's our intention today  
21 to allow everyone an opportunity to participate.

22                   So I think with that, we are ready  
23 for the slide show presentation. I believe we all  
24 should move down front so we can see it as well.

25                   MS. SCUDDER: Hello, my name is Bria Scudder

1 and I work for the Illinois House of  
2 Representatives. I'm going to give a brief  
3 overview of our state's redistricting procedure.

4 I'll briefly discuss the procedures  
5 and background of redistricting, and information on  
6 the Voting Rights Act. I will also be going over  
7 the new state redistricting guidelines recently  
8 signed into law. Finally, we'll look at the  
9 results of the 2010 Census and what those results  
10 say about your community.

11 What is redistricting?

12 Redistricting is the process that insures all  
13 Illinois residents are afforded equal  
14 representation in the state legislature and federal  
15 Congress as guaranteed by the United States  
16 Constitution.

17 Why do we redistrict? The U.S.  
18 Supreme Court held a series of rulings in the 1960s  
19 that congressional and state legislative districts  
20 in each state must be of equal populations,  
21 establishing the principle of "one person, one  
22 vote." As a result, states redraw congressional  
23 and state districts every ten years to reflect  
24 changes in populations as shown by the census.

25 The time line for redrawing the

1 legislative map is based on the Illinois  
2 Constitution. On December 21 data collected by the  
3 2010 Census was delivered to the President. The  
4 full block-by-block census profile of Illinois,  
5 which will be used in the redistricting process,  
6 was released in February.

7           The Illinois State Legislature has  
8 the initial responsibility of passing the new  
9 congressional and state maps. Both the State House  
10 and State Senate must pass a plan with a majority  
11 of votes. The plan must then be signed by the  
12 Governor. If any map does not go into the effect  
13 by the Constitutional deadline of June 30,  
14 responsivity for creating a new map passes from the  
15 Legislature and Governor to a Legislative  
16 Redistricting Commission.

17           The Commission shall consist of  
18 eight members with no more than four from the same  
19 political party. A majority vote of five or more  
20 Commission members will constitute final approval  
21 of a new map. However, if that Commission does not  
22 agree to a map by September 1, the Illinois Supreme  
23 Court will submit two names, one from each party,  
24 to the Illinois Secretary of State, who will chose  
25 one name at random to serve as the ninth member of

1 the Commission. Five of the nine members of the  
2 Commission must agree to a plan no later than  
3 October 5.

4 How is redistricting done? In order  
5 to understand how the census data is used to draw  
6 new districts, we must note several guiding  
7 principles.

8 First among these principles is  
9 equal population. State law mirrors the federal  
10 "one person, one vote" standard and mandates  
11 congressional and state districts to contain  
12 substantially equal population.

13 As a result of the 2010 Census, the  
14 target population of each House district is 108,734  
15 residents, while ideal populations for Senate  
16 districts is 217,468 people.

17 Federal and state law also requires  
18 all districts to be contiguous, which means all  
19 parts of the district must be next to each other  
20 unless connected by water. Annexations and  
21 unincorporated areas in municipalities and counties  
22 sometimes make communities that are discontinuous.  
23 However, the congressional and state districts must  
24 be adjacent or connected at all points.

25 The more difficult requirement to

1 define is compactness. There are at least 30  
2 different scientific ways to measure how compact  
3 the district is, but no statute or precedent  
4 defines the standard criteria of compactness.

5 In theory, compactness focuses on  
6 the shape of the district's boundaries, how spread  
7 out a district is from a central core, or where a  
8 district's population center of gravity is. In  
9 practice compactness is hindered by geography and  
10 on-the-ground realities, so often representation of  
11 compactness involves more than an individual test.

12 Illinois is one of 14 states that  
13 nests two of its House districts, also called  
14 Representative districts, inside one of the Senate  
15 districts, also called Legislative districts.

16 Many people also look, where  
17 possible, to follow existing political and  
18 geographic boundaries in ways that maximize the  
19 community's opportunity to have its interests  
20 represented. As we know, however, county,  
21 municipality, township, and natural geographic  
22 boundaries are not always compact and contiguous.

23 While studying census data and  
24 holding public hearings like this to listen to the  
25 thoughts of residents across the state, lawmakers

1 must look to identify what are known as communities  
2 of interest. A community of interest is a group of  
3 people concentrated in a geographic area who are  
4 socially, culturally, ethnically, economically,  
5 religiously or otherwise alike, and can be joined  
6 in a district to most effectively have their voices  
7 heard. The factors contributing to any particular  
8 community in interest will vary throughout the  
9 state.

10 Federal law requires redistricting  
11 plans to respect minority representation. The  
12 principles of the Federal Voting Rights Act are in  
13 place to prevent the reduction of opportunities for  
14 minority populations to participate equally in the  
15 electoral process. However, districts cannot be  
16 drawn solely on the basis of race.

17 Earlier this year, Governor Quinn  
18 signed legislation to protect representation of  
19 racial and language minority groups. Senate Bill  
20 3976 helps to prevent minority fracturing or divide  
21 a concentration of minorities among two or more  
22 districts, or require mapmakers to consider  
23 creating crossover districts, coalition districts,  
24 or influence districts.

25 Now, what are crossover districts,

1 coalition districts and influence districts? A  
2 crossover district is one in which a large minority  
3 group may elect a candidate of its choice with help  
4 from voters of the majority group. A coalition  
5 district brings multiple racial or minority groups  
6 together to elect a candidate of their choice. An  
7 influence district allows a group to influence an  
8 election outcome without being the majority  
9 population in a district.

10 These new state law requirements  
11 come into play only after complying with federal  
12 law and US and State Constitutional requirements on  
13 redistricting. In addition, the law insures  
14 transparency by requiring public hearings across  
15 the state, one of which we are having here right  
16 now.

17 The hearings will provide a space  
18 for residents to share their thoughts on the  
19 redistricting process, a key component to creating  
20 a map that best represents the people of Illinois.  
21 At the end of the presentation we will display an  
22 e-mail address on the screen for you to submit your  
23 ideas for consideration. The Committee is also  
24 considering your written testimony and  
25 documentation today.

1                   So now we have covered the  
2     redistricting process, let's take a look at the  
3     census data that we use to draw your districts.  
4     All the maps that you're going to see are drawn by  
5     using census blocks, which is the smallest level of  
6     geography the Census Bureau needs to represent  
7     population data.

8                   As of the 2010 Census, the total  
9     population of the State of Illinois is 12,830,632,  
10    as compared to the State's 2000 total population of  
11    12,419,293, an increase of about 410,000.

12                  The counties with the largest  
13    population by percentage increase since 2000 are  
14    Boone, Grundy, Kane, Kendall and Will County.

15                  Demographically speaking, Illinois  
16    has seen a lot of change over the past decade. The  
17    white population has risen statewide by .6 percent  
18    to 8,167,753. Illinois' African-American  
19    population has fallen statewide by .6 percent to  
20    1,832,924. Illinois' Hispanic population, though,  
21    has risen statewide by 32.5 percent to a total of  
22    2,027,578. Illinois' Asian population has also  
23    risen statewide by 38.6 percent to 580,586.

24                  Now, let's have a look at the area  
25    of the south suburban Chicago area. In 2000 the



1 population was 322,839 people. In the last ten  
2 years the area population has decreased to 313,633.

3 The 2010 Census reports that the  
4 African-American population is 204,476, an increase  
5 of 31,188 people. The Hispanic population in the  
6 south suburbs was 35,579 at the end of the 2010  
7 Census. That's up 10,360 people. The 2010 Census  
8 also reported an Asian population of 200,205, a  
9 decrease of 474 people over the last decade.

10 As you can see, the Hispanic and  
11 African-American populations experienced a  
12 significant increase, despite the region's overall  
13 loss of population. We see that more clearly in  
14 areas like Lansing, which had an increase of almost  
15 197 percent in its African-American population, and  
16 about 553 in the Hispanic population. However,  
17 Lansing's overall population stayed the same.

18 And here are some more mapping  
19 totals in minority populations, this time shown in  
20 a broader range throughout the hearing region.

21 This is the south suburban African  
22 American population, Hispanic population, Asian  
23 population.

24 Thank you very much for attending  
25 today's hearing and sharing your thoughts and

1 opinions with us. If you have any comments you can  
2 e-mail us at ILRedistricting@gmail.com, or visit  
3 our website at www.ILHouseDems.com/redistricting  
4 for more information. Thank you.

5 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: I'm Barbara Flynn  
6 Currie, I'm Chair of the Redistricting Committee,  
7 and I apologize for being disastrously late. I got  
8 totally lost, and what should have been a 30-minute  
9 trip and leaving 45 minutes ahead of time, as a  
10 result of being lost was in fact an hour-  
11 and-a-half. I think a GPS may be in my future. So  
12 we ask you to keep your remarks short, and even  
13 four minutes would not be bad.

14 Our first panel is Michael Einhorn  
15 the Village President of Crete. Mikal Stole,  
16 Trustee of the Village of Lansing, and Mike Tilton,  
17 the Trustee in South Chicago Heights.

18 So we don't really have a proper  
19 place, but if you could take the first few seats  
20 right there and you can stand up and speak into the  
21 microphone. I'm sorry we don't have a table for  
22 you.

23 So whichever one of you wants to go  
24 first, we are happy to hear from you. If you  
25 please spell your name, we have a court reporter,

1 so it's very helpful if you please spell your name  
2 out loud.

3 MR. EINHORN: My name is Michael Einhorn, it's  
4 E-i-n-h-o-r-n. I'm the Mayor from the Village of  
5 Crete, Illinois. And actually, not knowing how  
6 this was going to be conducted and what kind of  
7 content it was going to have, I did sign up to  
8 speak today. I think that my comments will be a  
9 lot briefer than what I originally anticipated.

10 I just want to say, first of all,  
11 you have to make sure that Anthony DeLuca gets  
12 noticed as being here today. He was left out in  
13 the roll call before. He is my representative, so  
14 I wouldn't want that to go unnoticed.

15 I will say just from a mayoral  
16 standpoint that one of the things I think means the  
17 most to a lot of the mayors that I associate with,  
18 and that is having too many legislators to deal  
19 with. Some towns have multiple people. So  
20 anything that you can do to make that easier on us  
21 and have only one person from the state legislature  
22 as a state representative and as the senator, it  
23 makes it a lot easier for us because it sometimes  
24 can create conflict that we would prefer not to  
25 have to deal with.

1 Other than that, I think if you  
2 follow all the things that were just presented in  
3 the slide presentation, I have every confidence  
4 that you will come up with the correct solution,  
5 especially if you start small like you said with  
6 the precincts, and with taking notes as good  
7 building foundation, building blocks, I think that  
8 you'll achieve your goals. And I thank you for the  
9 opportunity to speak today.

10 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you very much,  
11 Mr. Einhorn. And if you decide you want to stand  
12 and enlarge upon your remarks, we are always  
13 available for more written testimony. But that was  
14 fine, we appreciate it.

15 Mikal Stole, the Village Trustee of  
16 Lansing.

17 MR. STOLE: Thank you. My name is Mikal  
18 Stole. It's spelled M-i-k-a-l, S-t-o-l-e. Good  
19 evening. I'm the Trustee from the Village of  
20 Lansing, Illinois. I'm also the chairman of the  
21 Lansing Municipal Airport.

22 I'm here today on behalf of the  
23 Village of Lansing to give three recommendations to  
24 the Legislative Committee when considering the  
25 reapportionment of the legislative districts.

1 I'm going to keep my remarks short, but  
2 just by way of background, as the opening slide  
3 show indicated, Lansing has only lost one  
4 individual in accordance with the 2010 Census.  
5 Lansing is divided currently into three legislative  
6 representative districts. We have Constance  
7 Howard, Anthony DeLuca, and Representative Thaddeus  
8 Jones.

9 Now, on the three recommendations, I  
10 have gone out and sought input from various  
11 governmental organizations, current elected  
12 officials, and certainly residents of Lansing, and  
13 I would just like to echo Mr. Einhorn's comments.  
14 We would like not to be divided into three  
15 legislative districts anymore.

16 Two of the three legislative  
17 districts extend into the City of Chicago, and one  
18 of our major concerns is that there is competing  
19 interest between the suburbs and the City of  
20 Chicago.

21 If I can just by way of example of a  
22 potential concern that we might have, that is  
23 Lansing is extremely supportive of the southland --  
24 excuse me, the proposed southeast service line.  
25 Now, I also understand there is a proposed Red Line

1 extension from 95th Street down to 130th Street.  
2 So as you can see, if we are part of a district  
3 that also extends into the City of Chicago, we are  
4 concerned that our support for the southeast  
5 service line might at some point come into conflict  
6 with the Chicago Red Line extension.

7           And that's not to say that our  
8 current representatives, our three representatives,  
9 have not been supportive to us, but our concern  
10 also for the future by having three districts is  
11 that if it should come at some point that we are  
12 divided into a small area for certain legislature,  
13 where we might fall by the wayside, and our  
14 interests, our legislative agenda, and our  
15 residents' interest will not be adequately  
16 represented.

17           Our second concern is, our second  
18 recommendation is that we are a border community.  
19 The eastern border of the Village of Lansing  
20 extends all the way down to the Illinois/Indiana  
21 border, and there are certain challenges that come  
22 with being a border community. We are all well  
23 aware that the Governor of Indiana, Mitch Daniels,  
24 is making an active push to lure Illinois  
25 businesses into Indiana.

1                   But for the residents of Calumet  
2 City, Lansing, South Holland, Homewood, we all  
3 realize that there are other challenges of being a  
4 border community, and these are not new challenges  
5 now with Governor Mitch Daniels. So we have had  
6 some terrific support from our current legislators,  
7 Anthony DeLuca, Thaddeus Jones and Al Riley. We  
8 thank you very much for your help with House Bill  
9 503 to help out the Lansing Municipal Airport, and  
10 the certain tax concerns with being a border  
11 community.

12                   And my final recommendation would be  
13 not to divide Lansing, or to keep Lansing in a  
14 suburban district. We see ourselves as being  
15 aligned with suburban interests rather than the  
16 interests of the City of Chicago.

17                   So thank you very much. I  
18 appreciate your time.

19                   REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you. We  
20 appreciate yours. And if you would like to leave a  
21 copy of your prepared remarks with the court  
22 reporter.

23                   MR. STOLE: They're all marked up and I'd  
24 rather not. Thank you.

25                   REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Now, also on this panel

1 is Michael Tilton, the Trustee of South Chicago  
2 Heights. Is Mike with us? If not, we will move on  
3 to the next panel.

4 It starts with Barbara Pasquinelli,  
5 who is the co-president of the League of Women  
6 Voters. And with her was to be, although I'm not  
7 sure if they've signed in as yet, David Lowery, the  
8 president of Chicago Far South Suburban NAACP,  
9 Laverne Butler from the AARP, and a representative  
10 from Draw the Line Illinois.

11 If any of you are here whose names  
12 or groups I've mentioned, please come forward we  
13 will have you.

14 Okay, carry on. And again, spell  
15 your name for the court reporter.

16 MS. PASQUINELLI: Thank you very much. Good  
17 evening. I have all this time now. My name is  
18 Barbara Pasquinelli, P-a-s-q-u-i-n-e-l-l-i, and I'm  
19 currently president of the League of Women Voters  
20 of the Palos/Orland area.

21 We thank you for the opportunity to  
22 share our thoughts with you about the redistricting  
23 process. The League of Women Voters is a non-  
24 partisan political organization that encourages  
25 informed and active participation in government,



1 works to increase understanding of major public  
2 policy issues, and influences public policy through  
3 education and advocacy. We never support or oppose  
4 any political party or candidate.

5 We have for years promoted a set of  
6 redistricting principles, as well as a process that  
7 is timely and orderly and includes the following  
8 elements: A formal, announced timetable; the  
9 availability of information and related data to all  
10 who wish to participate; ample opportunities for  
11 expert testimony, public reaction and input;  
12 compromise among partisan representatives; and  
13 produces a map which offers voters a choice of  
14 candidates in elections.

15 The public should be allowed to see  
16 and comment on any new maps that are drawn by the  
17 General Assembly at least two weeks before they are  
18 voted on. Additionally, the General Assembly  
19 should give as much rationale as possible when  
20 describing the decisions that resulted in the final  
21 maps.

22 I gave you a blown up map of my  
23 particular area. I live in Palos Heights,  
24 Illinois, and if you look along the boundaries, you  
25 will see that boundary goes along Route 83. That

1 makes sense. All of a sudden it goes up 68th  
2 Court, you can see that. It's a little jog to the  
3 south. 68th Court is a side street, it's a nothing  
4 street. It goes up for two blocks, then it goes  
5 back over to Oak Park Avenue for three blocks, and  
6 then it goes up to 123rd. All of this is within a  
7 little half mile area. Back across to 71st,  
8 another inconsequential street. Down to 121st,  
9 over one block to Harlem Avenue, a big street, up  
10 one block on Harlem, over again on 123rd Street for  
11 two blocks, up to 123rd, and then to the west. It  
12 makes absolutely no sense whatsoever to be  
13 zig-zagging up and down side streets like that.

14                   Secondly, that's one district. We  
15 are represented by two different people as well.  
16 We are in two representative districts, two  
17 senatorial districts, and two congressional  
18 districts. This is a town of 13,000 people, an  
19 entire area of two square blocks. We really don't  
20 need all of those people. We would prefer to be  
21 part of a community of interest with our neighbors  
22 Palos Park, anybody else.

23                   But the map that you're looking at  
24 absolutely makes no sense at all. And I hope that  
25 when you draw a new one, we will all be able to

1 take a look at it, and if we see anything that  
2 jumps out at us, we can respond. Thank you.

3 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you very much.  
4 And could I just ask you to -- in the material that  
5 you gave the clerk, could you just put your name  
6 and your organization on one copy so we know where  
7 that came from.

8 MS. PASQUINELLI: Sure.

9 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Are there questions for  
10 Ms. Pasquinelli? If not, we will move right on.

11 Were any of the others from this  
12 panel available to join us? That would be David  
13 Lowery, Laverne Butler, and a representative from  
14 Draw the Line Illinois.

15 The next panel is Lee Deustche from  
16 the 80th District Agriculture Advisory Committee,  
17 Michael Gaffney, vice-president of Lan-Oak Park  
18 District, okay.

19 Come forward, please.

20 MR. LOWERY: Good evening.

21 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Good evening.

22 MR. LOWERY: I would like to thank this panel  
23 for inviting the South Suburban NAACP to this event  
24 so that we could give a clear understanding of what  
25 the redistricting will do out in the south

1 suburbs. But I would like to just reserve our  
2 opinion at this time until the final map is drawn,  
3 and then that's when we'll address it if there are  
4 any issues that face our community. Thank you.

5 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you very much.

6 Questions for Mr. Lowery? Could you  
7 please fill out a witness slip.

8 Representative Yarbrough.

9 Representative Yarbrough has a question for you,  
10 and someone will bring you a witness slip.

11 REPRESENTATIVE YARBROUGH: Mr. Lowrey, can you  
12 tell me whether or not the NAACP will be providing  
13 a map, the state NAACP?

14 MR. LOWERY: I'm not for sure on that. What  
15 I'll do is once we do get a final map, then we will  
16 look at what the State Conference of Branches feel  
17 this should be, and then we will address it from  
18 there.

19 REPRESENTATIVE YARBROUGH: Thank you.

20 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you. Any other  
21 questions for Mr. Lowery?

22 Representative Davis.

23 REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS: It's a comment for  
24 Mr. Lowery. If you wait until the final map is  
25 drawn, how are we going to take into consideration

1 what your concerns or issues might be? If that's a  
2 final map, it may occur as a final map.

3 MR. LOWERY: Well, if it affects my community  
4 in such a negative way, then we can also use the  
5 legal court system to challenge the map.

6 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: And you're hoping to  
7 have a chance to look at that.

8 So once again, if you will please  
9 take a chance to fill out a witness slip. Thank  
10 you so much for participating.

11 So then we have Michael Gaffney,  
12 Margaret Burns-Westmeyer, chairwoman of the Chicago  
13 Heights Beautification Committee. Michael Gaffney,  
14 vice-president of the Lan-Oak Park District, and  
15 Lee Deustche, 80th District Agriculture Advisory  
16 Committee. I'm not sure all three of you are here,  
17 but I think at least two of you are. So jump right  
18 in. And again, spell your name for the court  
19 reporter.

20 MR. GAFFNEY: Good afternoon. My name is  
21 Michael Gaffney, that's G-a-f-f-n-e-y. I currently  
22 serve as the vice-president of the Lan-Oak Park  
23 District in Lansing, Illinois. I'm going to keep  
24 my comments very brief, but I would like to thank  
25 Madam Chairman and the members of the panel for

1 allowing us the opportunity to be here this  
2 afternoon.

3 A lot of my comments will echo many  
4 of my colleagues today. And I think the biggest  
5 thing is that we in Lansing have three House  
6 representatives to serve our town, and I really  
7 believe it helps fracture our town as I hear from  
8 our residents that many of them don't even know who  
9 their state representative is. And as we redraw  
10 this map after the census here, that please take  
11 into consideration that we would like to have one  
12 representative, whether it's here in the House.  
13 And I echo for the state and Senate also, so we  
14 have one representative that covers our community.

15 And that really echoes everything I  
16 have to say. And again, thank you for your time.

17 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you for being so  
18 succinct.

19 Questions for Mr. Gaffney? Thank  
20 you.

21 MR. DEUTSCHE: My name is Lee Deutsche, and  
22 Deutsche is spelled D-e-u-t-s-c-h-e, and I would  
23 like to commend the Chairman for pronouncing it  
24 correctly. Because when you have a name like  
25 "Deutsche," it gets pronounced a lot of different

1 ways.

2 But I'm very pleased that you're  
3 offering this opportunity to the people to give  
4 their testimony, and I guess I would be one of a  
5 party here, a representative of a community of  
6 interest, because I am a farmer. I've been a  
7 farmer all my life, and I just feel that we would  
8 like to have a district that we commingle both with  
9 the suburban people and the farming people, but  
10 that would be continuous. Because we don't --  
11 we're unincorporated, so we don't have the problems  
12 that Lansing or someplace has of having different  
13 representatives, but it would just be nice to have  
14 a contiguous map.

15 Because ten years ago I was on the  
16 Will County Board, and I was really instrumental in  
17 drawing a map. And I happened to be in a minority  
18 party so our map didn't make it. But we never had  
19 any kind of hearings like this, and I commend you  
20 very much for doing this. Thank you.

21 REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS: Thank you,  
22 Mr. Deutsche.

23 Questions for the witness? Question  
24 from Representative Durkin.

25 REPRESENTATIVE DURKIN: Thank you, sir. Where

1 do you live?

2 MR. DEUTSCHE: I live -- by MapQuest I live 34  
3 minutes from here, so really not that far removed.  
4 I mean --

5 REPRESENTATIVE DURKIN: Do you live 34 minutes  
6 east, west, or --

7 MR. DEUTSCHE: I'm in unincorporated Monee  
8 Township.

9 REPRESENTATIVE DURKIN: Who are your  
10 representatives and senator?

11 MR. DEUTSCHE: Our representative is -- we're  
12 suppose to be having Anthony DeLuca and Lisa Dugan,  
13 and then our State Senator is Toi Hutchinson.

14 REPRESENTATIVE DURKIN: How would you describe  
15 the demographics of your district? I'm curious, we  
16 are getting into you talking about part of the  
17 district fits into an agricultural, you talk about  
18 farm land, farming. And you had just the opposite  
19 I would assume in other parts of that House and  
20 Senate district, correct?

21 MR. DEUTSCHE: That's correct. The only thing  
22 is, the other side of that is that currently we  
23 were in a period of great development, but that has  
24 come to a halt. And I might add at this time that  
25 you feel a little apologetic about this, but you're



1 still happy, because I have two sons that are in  
2 the farming operation. But if you follow the  
3 markets, farming is doing very well.

4 We went through some very difficult  
5 times. We went through what the rest of society is  
6 going through, we went through that in the '80s.  
7 And now we're doing quite well. And ours is a farm  
8 that the Deutsches have been there since 1849, and  
9 we just kind of -- we just want to stay there,  
10 that's all.

11 And I'm the old senior one out of  
12 the bunch, but I have grandsons coming up and we  
13 are hoping to stay there.

14 REPRESENTATIVE DURKIN: You said you're a  
15 democratic member of the Will County Board,  
16 correct?

17 MR. DEUTSCHE: Yes.

18 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: He said he was in the  
19 minority.

20 REPRESENTATIVE DURKIN: And I know exactly what  
21 it feels like, to feel like you're one of  
22 Washington's generals. So let me ask you this,  
23 something we just want to get a taste for it. To  
24 what extent do you think there should be at least  
25 politics, the republicans, democrats

1 considerations, I mean or either party, should be  
2 taken into account during this drawing process?

3 MR. DEUTSCHE: Well, I definitely think we  
4 ought to encompass everybody. Because since a lot  
5 of people in this room probably know the history of  
6 me, because my wife was on the County Board at the  
7 same time and was a republican and she voted  
8 against my map, so.

9 But it's just that the County Board  
10 of Will did not do what your folks are doing today  
11 or through the state. I mean, it was kind of a --  
12 we people of the minority party wanted to have our  
13 little meeting and do our map, and they drew their  
14 map. And when the time came, their map made it and  
15 our map didn't. But I commend you for doing this.

16 I'd also like to commend  
17 Representative DeLuca at this time, because he's  
18 formed an aid community out of his district, and  
19 I've lived in this area all my life and he's the  
20 first representative that represented us that has  
21 an aid council that we have an opportunity to  
22 express our views.

23 REPRESENTATIVE DURKIN: That's the third time  
24 we've heard Representative DeLuca's name mentioned.

25 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: He's doing very well

1 tonight.

2 MR. DEUTSCHE: We're sticking up for him.

3 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Good, we like that.

4 Thank you.

5 MR. DEUTSCHE: Thank you.

6 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you, and you can  
7 fill out a witness slip before you leave.

8 REPRESENTATIVE DURKIN: Chairman, I have  
9 another question if I may. I apologize.

10 MR. DEUTSCHE: I feel like I'm doing my  
11 dissertation.

12 REPRESENTATIVE DURKIN: I will be easy on you.  
13 I used to prosecute down in Will County and I'm  
14 quite familiar with your area.

15 Would you consider that more of a  
16 rural district? I know it was growing in the early  
17 part of 2000, and then honestly down through the  
18 economy a lot of construction has stopped. So I  
19 don't know if it's more of a rural area.

20 Would you consider the area that you  
21 represent or that you would be representing would  
22 be more of a rural type district where you have  
23 more farmers like yourself, or do you think it's  
24 more of a mixed district based on the area in which  
25 you live?

1 MR. DEUTSCHE: Well, if you're familiar, it  
2 sounds as if you're familiar with Will County. I  
3 represent the County Board District 1, and I guess  
4 you would assume that that would be the second most  
5 rural district of the County Board. County Board  
6 District 6, which is a long, meandering district,  
7 because our district, County Board District 1,  
8 didn't take in Peotone and didn't take in Will  
9 Township or that. So 6 would have been more rural,  
10 and ours would have been second, and a very close  
11 second.

12 REPRESENTATIVE DURKIN: What were the  
13 populations of those districts in the last map if  
14 you recall?

15 MR. DEUTSCHE: I don't really. I'm sorry, I  
16 can't answer that. But I think after my map lost,  
17 I think I shredded them.

18 REPRESENTATIVE DURKIN: To my memory your  
19 county district was a very rural agrarian district,  
20 compared to Joliet downtown or out in the  
21 Bolingbrook area, that would be more of the rural  
22 part of Will County.

23 MR. DEUTSCHE: Well, I differ with you there  
24 somewhat on County Board District 1, because County  
25 Board District 1 probably has 40 percent of the

1 precincts in Frankfort. So -- and Frankfort  
2 wouldn't be considered rural.

3 REPRESENTATIVE DURKIN: No. That's fine.  
4 Obviously not. I appreciate your testimony today.

5 MR. DEUTSCHE: Is there any other questions?

6 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Before you leave,  
7 gentleman, Representative Riley has a question.

8 REPRESENTATIVE RILEY: Mr. Deutsche, thank you  
9 so much for coming. Many of us have a Will County  
10 background of some sort. In the mid-'80s I was  
11 chief of planning and development for Will County.  
12 My office was in the Madison Square building, and I  
13 lived in Will.

14 But wouldn't you say that some of  
15 the problems that we had in terms of representation  
16 and all kind of other concerns with the County  
17 Board just was because of the kind of bias against  
18 they called us Eastern Will, not necessarily  
19 because of the political geographic boundaries  
20 being drawn? Weren't there just some issues we had  
21 a hard time getting things across in the County  
22 Board?

23 MR. DEUTSCHE: I couldn't agree with you more.  
24 Because I think that when you represented County  
25 Board District 1, there was a certain amount of

1 people that felt anything east of Harlem Avenue was  
2 a stepchild that they didn't want to be there.  
3 They just as soon have us be in Indiana I think.  
4 So we lived with that, too. I mean, with law  
5 enforcement and everything. So you're right about  
6 that.

7 REPRESENTATIVE RILEY: Thank you.

8 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you again.  
9 Before you leave, any further questions? I think  
10 you're off the hook.

11 MR. DEUTSCHE: Thank you.

12 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you so much.

13 Now we have Margaret Burns-  
14 Westmeyer, chairman of the Chicago Heights  
15 Beautification Committee. And again, would you  
16 spell your name.

17 MS. BURNS-WESTMEYER: Okay, it's long.  
18 Margaret Burns-Westmeyer, B-u-r-n-s, hyphen,  
19 W-e-s-t-m-e-y-e-r.

20 I wasn't sure quite what this  
21 hearing was about, but I came because you did  
22 mention precincts in your statement, and they keep  
23 redrawing my precinct lines. When I lived in a  
24 house across the street from where I am now, I  
25 voted in the Bloom administrative building. I got

1 married, moved to the other side of the street, and  
2 I voted at St. Paul's Lutheran. Then about eight  
3 years ago I got a new card in the mail telling me I  
4 was going to be voting in Highland School, which is  
5 not really in my neighborhood, nowhere near it.  
6 Kind of you have to be down and around and it's in  
7 a little enclave over here.

8                   And please redraw me back to  
9 St. Paul's. It's kind of silly where I'm at. We  
10 vote at the Highland School, if you go a block-  
11 and-a-half to the south they vote at the Roosevelt  
12 School, if you go three houses north they vote at  
13 St. Paul's Lutheran.

14           REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Let me just say that  
15 the legislature does not draw the precinct. Where  
16 the boundary is at, that comes from the local  
17 jurisdiction.

18           REPRESENTATIVE RILEY: That's Dave's office.

19           MS. BURNS-WESTMEYER: If you can pass it along,  
20 you might have a little more sway than I have.

21           REPRESENTATIVE RILEY: Believe me, tell them.  
22 Because it happens all the time in elections, they  
23 will be senior citizen homes, we have our citizens  
24 here, we want our own polling place, and the County  
25 tries to accommodate. So you would be surprised.

1 But that's where that is.

2 MS. BURNS-WESTMEYER: I would be surprised.

3 REPRESENTATIVE RILEY: Well, they do a lot of  
4 good things all the time. So you might want to let  
5 them know that.

6 MS. BURNS-WESTMEYER: Well, I will also add  
7 that I saw the maps of the demographics, and very  
8 enlightening. But also, let's not forget that I'm  
9 very proud to live in a very diverse town. And you  
10 know what, basically we are all the same. We want  
11 good schools, good roads, good police and fire and  
12 good neighbors. And when you redraw the lines, be  
13 respectful of natural boundaries like Forest  
14 Preserves and main streets. Because I guess what I  
15 want to say is I want to preserve the neighborhood  
16 feel, and that is where your group is. Right now  
17 the way we are hacked up, we're kind of withdrawn  
18 from each other. So please redraw that.

19 And whatever you do, make sure you  
20 keep Anthony as our guy, favorite son. Thank you  
21 very much.

22 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you very much.

23 Now, the next witnesses were Reggie  
24 Greenwood, Frank Elton and Don Seehausen. I don't  
25 have information that says any of them are here,



1 but if you are, now is your chance to come forward.

2 How about the next panel, Steve  
3 Balich, Pat Rea, Keith Pekau? I believe Pat Rea is  
4 here.

5 MR. REA: Well, Madam Chairman and members of  
6 the House of Representatives, I represent myself  
7 and the Village clerk of Tinley Park, and of course  
8 our mayor. And the statement which is in your  
9 package, not up there but outside, has been  
10 approved today by all of our trustees. I won't  
11 read it.

12 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Will you spell your  
13 name.

14 MR. REA: I sure will. It's brief. R-e-a.

15 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you.

16 MR. REA: I would like to have more, but that's  
17 it.

18 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: We appreciate you not  
19 reading the statement since you provided it to us.  
20 But if you'd like to summarize, we would be happy  
21 to hear that.

22 MR. REA: It's a different approach that we  
23 used and I believe encouraged. We're fairly  
24 unique. The town itself goes back to the second  
25 administration of Andrew Jackson. Our community

1 was pleased in the Civil War to provide soldiers  
2 and a Congressional Medal of Honor owner. By the  
3 1870s we defined where we wanted to go. In the  
4 1940s we did it again, and in the 1960s the plan is  
5 still in place.

6 We are a diverse community. We have  
7 grown every single ten year period since the 1860  
8 Census. And I say that, because you have asked are  
9 there communities, and yes, we think there are.

10 In the course of the last ten years  
11 we have grown by almost 18 percent. The largest  
12 part of our growth is minority. Black population  
13 has increased by 126 percent, the Hispanic  
14 population by about 97 percent, and the Asian  
15 American by about 85 percent. And this is all in  
16 here, so if I've missed a percent here or there,  
17 you have to look at the document. Our maps are in  
18 there as well.

19 All we would ask you -- and by the  
20 way, in doing these things we believe that we have  
21 succeeded. Some of you know the town or have heard  
22 of it. Four years ago we were selected the  
23 outstanding economic development community in the  
24 United States. The final three competition was  
25 Tinley Park, Illinois; Los Angeles, California; and

1 San Antonio, Texas. Last year the community was  
2 selected by Business Week Magazine as the  
3 outstanding community in the United States to raise  
4 a family.

5 We have 13 school districts, yet we  
6 work together. We have overlapping governmental  
7 meetings. We have two counties, Will and Cook, and  
8 I heard the interesting discussion, we still have  
9 some farms.

10 All this says that we are in fact  
11 almost a mirror of middle class, blue collar  
12 America. Some of us wear red. It's for when we're  
13 we in a board meeting, in case we get shot.

14 Anyhow, the fact is that we think we  
15 are doing the right thing. Now, we have two House  
16 members and two Senate members. Evenly split  
17 between the two parties, so we're not in a partisan  
18 sense.

19 But we would like to have -- we  
20 would like to be all in one. Is it important to  
21 us? We think it gives us a better opportunity to  
22 reflect to that representative and to that senator  
23 our unique needs. And by the way, if it was a  
24 representative district, because we are the 23rd  
25 largest community in the state, and along with

1 Orland the largest between Chicago and Springfield,  
2 we think that we would be heard certainly by the  
3 representatives.

4 By the way, both do not. They're  
5 not here today, but they're wonderful, both  
6 parties. And we go all the way back to Clark, for  
7 those that -- he was our representative in the  
8 1960s, and all the reps out of Western Springs, and  
9 we have managed to be blessed ever since.

10 So our petition to you is you've got  
11 a tough task, we know that. It's an art, not a  
12 science, and we know that. The philosophy could be  
13 everything from Edmund Burke, which tried to define  
14 representative government, to those of us who think  
15 we live in it. I'm in my 40th year of elected  
16 office, and the fact is we trust what you're going  
17 to do.

18 We just want to make a point of  
19 saying there is a certain uniqueness. We have  
20 worked it. We've worked at it for over a hundred  
21 years, still working. We just wanted to make that  
22 point. Thank you.

23 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you very much,  
24 Mr. Rae.

25 Questions for Mr. Rae?

1 Representative Davis.

2 REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS: Just out of curiosity,  
3 sir, I would have never thought Tinley Park was  
4 necessarily a diverse community. When you talk  
5 about percentages, do you know what the numbers  
6 are?

7 MR. RAE: Surely. Right now I will give the  
8 percentages. 70,000 people. We are about 85  
9 percent majority. The black population is in  
10 numbers probably around 2,000, but it was about  
11 400. I happen to have adopted a Hispanic son who  
12 married a wonderful black girl, three black  
13 grandchildren all live down the street from me.  
14 The black population is growing, but the one that  
15 is really growing is Hispanic. And that means if  
16 you start tracking that -- by the way, we have  
17 demographers we employ, it's really the last four  
18 years. And I'm sure you're seeing all this.

19 But that's the breakdown. It's  
20 continuing. We also have a very interesting and  
21 wonderful Islamic population. Which is really two  
22 maps on the edge, between us and Orland, and us and  
23 Frankfort, for those of us who know the area. And  
24 we are very pleased to have, by the way, through  
25 normal processing and testing three Islamic

1 policeman on our force.

2 I don't know if that's more of an  
3 answer than you wanted.

4 REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS: No, I was just curious.  
5 Thank you.

6 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: That was a good  
7 answer.

8 Representative Rebelotti.

9 REPRESENTATIVE REBELOTTI: Thank you. Your  
10 process is to have one state representative. Would  
11 that be a fair assessment?

12 MR. RAE: Yes.

13 REPRESENTATIVE REBELOTTI: Representing the  
14 entire town. And I know you do have two state  
15 reps. Do you also have two state senators?

16 MR. RAE: Yes.

17 REPRESENTATIVE REBELOTTI: Is there one that  
18 represents --

19 MR. RAE: One is prevailing.

20 REPRESENTATIVE REBELOTTI: How many persons  
21 would they represent compared to the other?

22 MR. RAE: Probably 80,000 to 22,000.

23 REPRESENTATIVE REBELOTTI: Thank you.

24 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Anybody else?

25 REPRESENTATIVE RILEY: It's not as if we have

1 three or four reps in the district.

2 MR. RAE: And we have that. By the way, it's  
3 not all bad either. And to be perfectly honest, we  
4 have three congressmen, it's wonderful. We used to  
5 have four, it was even better. Maybe because you  
6 have four people to talk to. I feel that, and I've  
7 been chatting with them for --

8 REPRESENTATIVE BURKE: So you're telling me you  
9 have democratic and republican representatives.

10 MR. RAE: Yes, we do.

11 REPRESENTATIVE BURKE: Perhaps you have some  
12 balance that might be an advantage to Tinley Park.

13 MR. RAE: Our feeling is it can be helpful.  
14 But let me give an example everywhere it is, and  
15 this will apply all over the state.

16 We have a bridge that's crossing  
17 Interstate 80. We have a state representative who  
18 has part of it, another who has another part. They  
19 will work together on it, but not always. I don't  
20 mean they fight with each other, it's just there's  
21 other parts in local districts. If we have the  
22 capacity to say we're it, or part of it, it  
23 counts. We have -- and Representative Kevin  
24 McCarthy is the majority, and Representative Kosel  
25 has the balance, which is really the Will County

1 side. Both of them work to help us.

2 REPRESENTATIVE RILEY: And I have the Tinley  
3 Park representative center.

4 MR. RAE: Let me suggest that we hope so.

5 REPRESENTATIVE RILEY: Oh, I had it. I was  
6 responsible for the bill.

7 MR. RAE: And that's good. We funded it. It's  
8 100 percent local money. But we are overjoyed with  
9 any assistance. And besides that, you have also  
10 helped us in some other ways. Actually, everybody  
11 out here does. It's really more of a community  
12 than you might at first think in this part of the  
13 state.

14 But back to examples. I gave you  
15 where a bridge crosses a road. I can tell you now  
16 with the Tinley Park Mental Health Center, which I  
17 won't go into at length, you have been working with  
18 that, have been, and will be for years to come, we  
19 really need almost a committed effort for that  
20 facility to either be built or closed. And from  
21 the point of view of economic development, that is  
22 some of the finest property that exists in the  
23 Metropolitan area of Chicago. Absolutely  
24 dynamite. But nobody takes it and charges with  
25 it. That is hurting us.



1                   And I give you that as example.

2       We're not whining. Everything is fine.

3           REPRESENTATIVE BURKE: I would think there is  
4       strength in numbers, and also counsel that we have  
5       equal representation to democratic, republican,  
6       that we now believe that two voices that are being  
7       heard in Chambers representing our interests and I  
8       think there is an advantage to that.

9           MR. RAE: And certainly an argument could be  
10      made. And we haven't weighed those two before I  
11      came forward, and we came down on the side that I  
12      presented.

13          REPRESENTATIVE BURKE: I know your mayor, he  
14      was a short time supervisor as I remember back in  
15      the '90s. But I will stop there. He's a good man  
16      and I wish there was an easy way to insure that  
17      district would not only be split up, but I think  
18      it's one of those casualties in the process. It's  
19      very difficult to achieve that goal and we all want  
20      to see that. But I represented Oak Park one time  
21      back in the '90s, we had some six representatives  
22      and senators, and I will be quite honest with you,  
23      they don't even know where to start. And they are  
24      pretty self-sufficient. And also at the end of the  
25      day were deprived of some of the advantages that

1 our towns have who are within a single  
2 representative district that did not share multiple  
3 representatives.

4 MR. RAE: Strong arguments, I would agree, to  
5 be made on both sides.

6 REPRESENTATIVE BURKE: Thank you.

7 MR. RAE: Thank you.

8 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you, Mr. Rae.

9 The next scheduled panel was Barbara  
10 Bellar and Chuck Augustyniak. We don't have  
11 witness cards, but if they're here, please come  
12 forward.

13 Then we have some people who haven't  
14 signed up in advance, and if you would come  
15 forward. Lawrence Hill representing the African  
16 Americans for the Legislative Districting, Wendell  
17 Mosby, Philip Kitzburger.

18 Go ahead and start. And again,  
19 spell your last name for the court reporter.

20 MR. HILL: Good evening. My name is Lawrence  
21 Hill, H-i-l-l, and I'm a president of the Cook  
22 County Bar Association, the oldest black Bar  
23 Association in America. I'm here today, however,  
24 to testify on behalf of African Americans for  
25 Legislative Redistricting, and we are a coalition

1 of civic leaders and civic groups throughout the  
2 State of Illinois, including the Chicago Chapters  
3 of the NAACP and the National Urban League. Some  
4 of our members were participants in the 2001  
5 legislative redistricting, and we bring historical  
6 insight to the process.

7 My objective here today is to  
8 outline AALR's vision for the minimum purposes for  
9 fair redistricting for black residents in  
10 Illinois. In doing so, I will address three areas  
11 of primary concern: The Illinois Voting Rights Act  
12 of 2011, attempts at packing black voters, and  
13 other fairness considerations. I have prepared  
14 written testimony, I'm not going to read it all.  
15 I'm going to summarize that testimony as we have  
16 been advised.

17 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Great. And then you  
18 also leave the testimony with the court reporter.

19 MR. HILL: Certainly. We believe that the  
20 Illinois Voting Rights Act is a momentous and  
21 salutary law that promises fairer redistricting for  
22 all racial minorities if it is properly  
23 implemented.

24 We read the Illinois Voting Rights  
25 Act to require the legislature to create crossover,

1 coalition, or influence districts where it is not  
2 feasible to create majority/minority districts, and  
3 where doing so is otherwise consistent with other  
4 redistricting edicts in the United States  
5 Constitution.

6 Our coalition views the Illinois  
7 Voting Rights Act as a protection against  
8 gratuitously cracking the black vote. Cracking, of  
9 course, is a means of diluting the black vote by  
10 spreading the black population into multiple  
11 districts in which it cannot control the outcome of  
12 an election. In the absence of the Illinois Voting  
13 Rights Act, in a district where blacks do not  
14 constitute a voting-age majority, it would be fair  
15 game to redistribute that population.

16 However, assuming the other  
17 prerequisites of a vote dilution claim are  
18 satisfied, if a black plurality can demonstrate the  
19 existence of white crossover votes sufficient to  
20 elect the black-preferred candidate, or can show  
21 sufficient support from other minority groups to  
22 elect a black-preferred candidate, then we read  
23 that the Illinois Voting Rights Act mandates that  
24 the black population not be fractured. Our first  
25 minimum prerequisite for a fair redistricting

1 process is that the Illinois Voting Rights Act of  
2 2011 be followed.

3 We also understand the Illinois  
4 Voting Rights Act to be sensitive to the idea of  
5 maintaining communities of interest. Many black  
6 voters in Illinois have a unique relationship with  
7 their current state representative or senator.  
8 These relationships are the product of constituent  
9 service and advocacy of issues that bear especially  
10 upon communities of color. Where such  
11 relationships exist, the Illinois Voting Rights Act  
12 allows for the continuance even if the black voting  
13 age population does not constitute the majority in  
14 a district.

15 Moreover, the United States Supreme  
16 Court has been solicitous of state efforts to  
17 maintain consistency of representative relations.  
18 For this reason we do not expect a significant  
19 change in the current map as it relates to African  
20 American districts unless there is a compelling  
21 reason for such a change.

22 I would next like to address the  
23 coalition's concerns with the packing of black  
24 votes. Packing refers to the over-concentration of  
25 black voters in a few districts, thereby

1 constricting their ability to control or influence  
2 the outcomes in a greater number of districts.

3                   We understand that the redistricting  
4 process is political, we simply do not wish to be  
5 its pawn. Thus, our second minimum prerequisite  
6 for fair redistricting is that the legislature be  
7 guided by the best available political data in  
8 determining which majority/minority districts to  
9 create, which Illinois Voting Rights Act minority-  
10 opportunity alternatives to create, and what  
11 percentage of minority populations will create  
12 effective majority/minority and minority-  
13 opportunity districts.

14                   This obviously may not forestall  
15 litigation like the suit brought after the 2001  
16 redistricting, but a baseline commitment to be  
17 guided by the best available data rather than  
18 generalizations will speed the resolution of any  
19 litigation. Of course, we respectfully request  
20 that all such data relied on by either of the  
21 parties be made available to the public.

22                   Finally, a couple of concerns with  
23 regard to fairness. Because blacks and Latinos  
24 constitute a disproportionately high share of the  
25 State and Federal prison population in Illinois, we

1 believe the practice of not counting inmates in the  
2 community where they come from as opposed to the  
3 community where they are incarcerated is harmful to  
4 minority interest in the redistricting process.

5                   Therefore, our third minimum  
6 requirement for fair redistricting is to count  
7 inmates as residents of the locality from where  
8 they come.

9                   Now, I understand that the bill  
10 relating to that was recently defeated in the  
11 legislature, but we still wanted to emphasize our  
12 view with regard to that process and note that  
13 other states such as Maryland and New York already  
14 utilize that tool for counting prison population.

15                   Finally, our coalition is aware that  
16 the Illinois Voting Rights Act of 2011 does not  
17 expressly apply to congressional redistricting.  
18 However, the same discretion afforded to the states  
19 in Bartlett, which is the case that is mentioned in  
20 the written testimony, does apply to congressional  
21 redistricting. We believe as a final minimum  
22 prerequisite for fair redistricting that the  
23 legislature should apply the basic framework of the  
24 Illinois Voting Rights Act to its congressional  
25 redistricting.

1                   Our coalition is looking forward to  
2 participating fully in this process. We do  
3 anticipate submitting proposed maps. And again,  
4 thank you for your time this afternoon.

5           REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you very much,  
6 Mr. Hill.

7                   Questions? I think that is  
8 Representative Rebelotti.

9           REPRESENTATIVE REBELOTTI: Thank you. You  
10 spoke about the prison population. We anticipated  
11 that issue, and I guess some of the concerns are  
12 for the communities where the prisons are, is that  
13 those communities rely on the populations as far as  
14 their population is concerned, as well as the  
15 amount of people that they represent. And if those  
16 communities build infrastructure based on that  
17 particular issue, does that give you any concern?

18           MR. HILL: We are aware of the argument that  
19 was raised, actually successfully, to defeat the  
20 bill, and that infrastructure services like water  
21 and sewer are more enhanced due to the actual  
22 presence of the inmate population in that  
23 downstate, for example, community.

24                   However, we believe that that  
25 concern is outweighed by the children and the



1 relatives of the population that's left in the  
2 community where the incarcerated inmate came from,  
3 and that those dollars from that particular inmate  
4 would be better served in the community where the  
5 inmate came from as opposed to the community where  
6 the person is housed.

7 REPRESENTATIVE REBELOTTI: Is that a concern  
8 about what the term of the sentence should be  
9 before that inmate should be counted back in the  
10 population where we would assume they would attend  
11 to? Is it a four years sentence, less than four  
12 years? Is it more than a ten years sentence? What  
13 in your legal opinion would that sentence be, that  
14 they would then put those folks back into the  
15 communities, their counties that they are coming  
16 from?

17 MR. HILL: Obviously that sort of a line  
18 drawing process is open for interpretation and  
19 debate. I wouldn't be -- I would not take an  
20 opinion one way or the other. There is an argument  
21 that someone who is, for example, sentenced to a  
22 life sentence will not necessarily ever contribute  
23 to the community from which they came.

24 But as I mentioned, there are other  
25 people that are related to that individual, and

1 that will have an impact in the community where the  
2 incarcerated offender came from. So there are  
3 considerations on both sides of that equation, and  
4 I would not be as presumptuous to draw a line.

5 REPRESENTATIVE REBELOTTI: Do you also have  
6 concerns that not everyone might be paroled back to  
7 the county they were before the incarceration or  
8 the last known address, so they may not be able to  
9 return because of the type of conviction? Some may  
10 chose to have other family members outside of state  
11 or have family in other parts of the state. Do you  
12 have some concerns about that?

13 MR. HILL: Naturally people's circumstances  
14 change, and that does affect part of the  
15 community. But I believe that in the main, the  
16 majority of incarcerated individuals are in fact  
17 returned to the community from which they came.

18 REPRESENTATIVE REBELOTTI: Thank you for your  
19 testimony.

20 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Representative Davis.

21 REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS: Thank you. I would like  
22 to take this opportunity personally to thank you  
23 for raising that particular issue. And I hope  
24 those sitting in the audience demonstrate some of  
25 the challenges we have in Springfield in terms of

1 addressing issues. And I don't know how each of  
2 you feel about that, but that is something to think  
3 about, because you're talking about resources for  
4 your community that weren't coming into their  
5 community for that reason. And we debated that, we  
6 don't necessarily need to take issue over it  
7 again. But we have questions for you.

8                   When you were talking about I guess  
9 majority/minority districts, has your organization  
10 settled on maybe a percentage in terms of African  
11 American population could or would be, that maybe  
12 should be aspired to in terms of drawing  
13 districts?

14           MR. HILL: Not necessarily a set percentage.  
15 We do have some -- a range in mind. I think that  
16 what has been proven defensible, if you look at the  
17 litigation history of these types of claims, is a  
18 minority population, if you're aiming for a  
19 majority/minority district, in the mid-60s, 65, 64,  
20 something like that.

21                   However, if you look at the  
22 conundrum presented by the loss of African American  
23 population combined with a need to ring a certain  
24 bell per district, it's not -- the math just  
25 doesn't work for you. So you end up with a

1 reasonable estimate, a floor somewhere in the mid-  
2 to high 50s.

3 So if you had to ask me today, I  
4 would say your floor end, you know, somewhere in  
5 the 55 to 58, and your ceiling somewhere in the  
6 mid- to upper 60s.

7 REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS: Okay. And kind of  
8 looking at it from that perspective, you indicated  
9 that your organization will provide maps, correct?

10 MR. HILL: We are going to be in the Balandic  
11 Building tomorrow morning drawing maps.

12 REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS: Okay. I'm sure there is  
13 a mechanism on which those maps can be submitted to  
14 the Redistricting Committee, correct?

15 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Yes.

16 MR. HILL: My understanding is that that is  
17 what the website is for.

18 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: That will be on the  
19 website. Anybody's map is welcome to the website.

20 MR. HILL: We will be e-mailing maps  
21 statewide.

22 REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS: Okay, I definitely  
23 appreciate that. And we look forward to your  
24 organization's support, because I feel that bill to  
25 count the way our prison population is, I think

1 that's probably going to come back. Maybe not in  
2 this particular session, but certainly in an  
3 upcoming session. So we look forward to your  
4 support in trying to get in on that. Thank you  
5 very much.

6 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you very much,  
7 Mr. Hill.

8 MR. HILL: May I take a brief personal  
9 courtesy? Thank you, Representative Currie. You  
10 are my representative.

11 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Say something nice  
12 about me, because everybody out there is talking  
13 about Anthony.

14 MR. HILL: I can give you a testimonial. A lot  
15 of representatives, you don't meet them.  
16 Representative Currie came to my house and  
17 personally asked me for the vote, and she got it.

18 REPRESENTATIVE BURKE: Chairman Currie, may I  
19 join the left shift and ask one more question?

20 I know you're going to be drawing  
21 some maps, and I think that is very important to  
22 the process. Do you have concerns about  
23 transparency as well, that your organization will  
24 be able to view a map that is put together by the  
25 General Assembly so that you will have time to talk

1 to the representatives and senators in your  
2 community and that you might be suggesting some  
3 changes?

4 MR. HILL: We do believe that all the data  
5 should be shared before the map is voted on.

6 REPRESENTATIVE BURKE: Is there a fair time  
7 frame you would expect? Would it be two weeks  
8 before we vote on the map, would you need a week?

9 MR. HILL: Hours.

10 REPRESENTATIVE BURKE: You only need hours.

11 MR. HILL: Days.

12 REPRESENTATIVE BURKE: I'm just asking,  
13 counsel, because I think it's important that we  
14 have a transparent process. And your concern for  
15 the organization would be that the maps are drawn  
16 fairly.

17 MR. HILL: Right.

18 REPRESENTATIVE BURKE: And that you would need  
19 time to review those maps and make recommendations  
20 or submit alternative maps. And I want to make  
21 sure your organization as well as others have time  
22 to respond. And I'm asking in your opinion what  
23 would be the appropriate time. So your response  
24 would be once you saw the maps and everybody would  
25 see the maps that would be drawn and soon to be

1 voted on in the General Assembly.

2 MR. HILL: It's a multi-prong process. So the  
3 short answer to your question is days. The maps  
4 are key, but they are not determinative. You would  
5 need rationale for changes, for variations between  
6 your map and a map that someone else is proposing,  
7 and you would also need alternatives. There are  
8 other people proposing for purposes of potential  
9 consensus voting. So if you had all of the data in  
10 front of you, I would think that you could get that  
11 done in a matter of days with concerted effort.

12 However, without the key ingredients  
13 in that equation it can stretch to weeks, so I  
14 don't want to be tied to a specific time frame. I  
15 would say if I had all the data, a couple of days,  
16 a few days would be all that is necessary.

17 REPRESENTATIVE BURKE: I think that is  
18 important as we are laying out the perimeters. You  
19 say 72 hours to review it.

20 MR. HILL: Right.

21 REPRESENTATIVE BURKE: I know that you may need  
22 two weeks. Thank you very much.

23 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you.

24 Any further questions? If not,  
25 thank you very much, sir.

1                   Now we have Wendell Mosby. Good  
2 evening.

3           MR. MOSBY: Good evening. I'm fairly new to  
4 this.

5           REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Spell your name.

6           MR. MOSBY: W-e-n-d-e-l-l, M-o-s-b-y. I'm  
7 fairly new to this political process. I'm a  
8 trustee elect for the great college of Prairie  
9 State. And love fest, Representative Al Riley,  
10 Representative Will Davis have been very  
11 instrumental in giving me some pointers as I began  
12 my campaign.

13                   And the one thing I want to comment  
14 on, I'm still fairly new to this, but I know with  
15 the Prairie District, if I was more in Will County,  
16 I would have lost a lot of votes. And so I just  
17 hope that when the efforts that are made to  
18 maintain majority/minority districts, because I  
19 know that down in Will County when it comes to the  
20 Prairie State District, we don't get to get down  
21 there and campaign very much, so it goes by name  
22 and things of that nature.

23                   So if my district was more in Will  
24 County, I think I wouldn't have been as successful  
25 there. So I just hope that when the Committee goes



1 about its business, they maintain the  
2 majority/minority districts as much as possible.

3 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you very much.

4 Representative Davis.

5 REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS: Thank you very much,  
6 Trustee, for taking the time out to come.

7 So it's your feeling that somewhere  
8 in this process you have to give consideration to  
9 support majority/minority interests, right?

10 MR. MOSBY: Absolutely.

11 REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS: And would you as an  
12 African American representing a very mixed  
13 population, a diverse population, feel that even as  
14 an African American you can provide representation  
15 to all the students in your county, right?

16 MR. MOSBY: Well, I feel I can, because I went  
17 to Iowa State University so I have a lot of friends  
18 who are farmers so I'm very familiar with the rural  
19 aspect of living and things like that, and some day  
20 I hope to own a farm. So I think I can relate to  
21 that area of my district, as well as being a native  
22 of Chicago Heights and them taking two or three  
23 years to settle, I think I see it both ways. But,  
24 yes, I think I can.

25 REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS: Thank you very much.

1 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Any further questions?

2 Thank you very much, sir.

3 Now we have Philip Kitzburger. Is  
4 he still here? Mary Sue McWilliams from Palos  
5 Heights, are you still here?

6 All right. Well, I guess both of  
7 those left. If anybody else wants to jump up and  
8 say a word or two or four to the members of this  
9 Committee, we would be happy to hear from you. The  
10 only request we have is whether you would be sure  
11 to sign the witness list, slip before you left.

12 If not, that's it. That's it?  
13 Nobody else wants to come forward and say nice  
14 things about Anthony DeLuca at this point?

15 Here, we have one more.

16 MR. JOHNSON: How do you do. My name is Dexter  
17 Johnson, Alderman of the 6th Ward, Blue Island.

18 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Could you spell your  
19 name, please, for the court reporter.

20 MR. JOHNSON: D-e-x-t-e-r, J-o-h-n-s-o-n.

21 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: And be sure to fill out  
22 the witness slip in the back.

23 MR. JOHNSON: Sure.

24 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Please carry on.

25 MR. JOHNSON: I'm actually pleased with both

1 state reps, Bob Rita as well as Will Davis, for  
2 bringing a unique type of feeling to us because of  
3 the makeup of our city, which is pretty much a  
4 third black, a third white, and a third Hispanic.

5 The things that they have brought to  
6 the table have been very helpful to bringing us  
7 more currently diverse, as well as economically  
8 sound. It's a lot more things that should be done,  
9 but they only have certain capabilities and certain  
10 things that they are allowed to do also.

11 My one question, though, is if we  
12 could have a little more transparency with the  
13 lottery system as it pertains to funding our school  
14 systems, because that is where we need a lot of  
15 help at.

16 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you,  
17 Mr. Johnson.

18 Any questions from members of the  
19 panel? If not, then thanks for your testimony.  
20 Just please fill out a witness slip.

21 And anybody else want to take this  
22 opportunity and have the last word?

23 MR. WHITTINGTON: Yes. Good evening, my name  
24 is Alderman Joseph Whittington.

25 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Please spell your name.

1 MR. WHITTINGTON: Whittington is spelled  
2 W-h-i-t-t-i-n-g-t-o-n. I represent the Harvey 2nd  
3 Ward business area.

4 I just wanted to say to the  
5 Committee I thank you for hosting this. This is  
6 something that our community, I wish more of my  
7 residents would have come out to this affair. I'm  
8 really honored to be sitting here and observe what  
9 you're trying to do for the community. I want to -  
10 - I spoke to both my representatives, Will Davis  
11 and Al Riley, and I just want to say I don't want  
12 you to go anywhere. I'm fine with you.

13 I wanted to thank you, Ms. -- I mean  
14 Representative Currie for your chairing of this  
15 Committee. And I want to thank everybody. That's  
16 all I wanted to say.

17 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you very much.  
18 We appreciate that, and we appreciate all of you  
19 being willing to come out and listen or maybe share  
20 your views, your opinions in the rehab process.  
21 This is a building block of democracy, and we are  
22 pleased with the participation.

23 MR. WHITTINGTON: And I also want to say I'm a  
24 board member here of the South Suburban College.  
25 I'm glad you chose this establishment.

1 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you. It's a  
2 lovely facility.

3 REPRESENTATIVE JONES: That was my question, to  
4 make him state his other position. I'm sorry.

5 MS. KELLY: Good evening, House of  
6 Representatives. My name is Trustee Kelly from the  
7 Village of Robbins. I would like to give some  
8 kudos as well to Representative Will Davis and  
9 Representative Rita. You all have been wonderful  
10 and inspirational and a blessing within our  
11 community, and we greatly appreciate you all.

12 My first concern would be we want to  
13 make sure, actually to insure efforts for home  
14 communities instead of multiple districts. And how  
15 will, or will it, effect the representatives that  
16 we already have. Will the redistricting actually  
17 effect our representatives that we already have.

18 We have two Senators and we have two  
19 representatives we greatly, greatly love and  
20 appreciate, and we just want to make sure that they  
21 stay within our districts.

22 REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you very much.  
23 And if you would also sign a witness slip out in  
24 the back.

25 Any questions for the witness? Yes,

1 Representative Davis.

2 REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS: Ms. Kelly, thank you  
3 very much for taking the time to come out. I don't  
4 know if there is an exact answer to your question,  
5 but obviously at some point they will be asked to  
6 try to put together a map in addition to the  
7 feedback we receive from the public and having that  
8 conversation. And while we are not sure how it's  
9 ultimately going to play out, but we have some  
10 benchmarks that we have to meet in terms of  
11 population, and I think our districts are going to  
12 be 108,000 people approximately now, something in  
13 that nature, so they are going to grow.

14 So when we are in that room, you  
15 know, one of our first considerations is getting to  
16 the appropriate number of people. And so we are  
17 playing and moving lines here and there and those  
18 numbers change. So that will -- that's one of the  
19 overriding factors that will make that  
20 determination in terms of how many people we have  
21 to have in our districts.

22 We need the districts according to  
23 census data. So it's going to be tougher for us,  
24 because we have Indiana to our east which means  
25 that our districts are going to push west, maybe

1 south or, you know, northwest a little bit. So  
2 it's not going to be what I think is the easiest  
3 thing to do. I think they cover, we all have to --  
4 if all the districts out here, just about all of  
5 them lost population, we have to gain 10 or 12,000  
6 people, and everybody has to do that, then those  
7 districts will look considerably different than the  
8 way they look right now.

9                   What will they look like at the  
10 end? I have no idea. We appreciate your desire to  
11 try to keep your two reps and we will work hard to  
12 try to keep it as such, but we really don't know  
13 how it's going to pan out.

14           MS. KELLY: Thank you. I'm just asking for a  
15 blessing as we really love our representatives.

16                   And also, Representative Riley, I  
17 just wanted to let you know that our Representative  
18 Hannah, he adores you. And I will let him know  
19 that I saw you today. And thank you, everybody,  
20 all the representatives. Thank you.

21           REPRESENTATIVE CURRIE: Thank you. And fill  
22 out a witness slip before you leave.

23                   And again, thank you for all being  
24 here. The building blocks of democracy are very  
25 important.

1                   And I also particularly appreciate  
2     the full attention from my colleagues in the  
3     Illinois House. I think this is really a good turn  
4     out. We really want to hear what you have to say.  
5     So thank you very much.

6                   The committee will stand in recess.

7                   (Off the record at 6:12 p.m.)

8                   (Which were all the proceedings  
9                   had in this cause at the above  
10                  date and time.)

11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25



1 STATE OF ILLINOIS )

2 ) SS:

3 COUNTY OF C O O K )

4

5 April T. Hansen, being first duly sworn  
6 on oath, says that she is a court reporter doing  
7 business in the City of Chicago, and that she  
8 reported in shorthand the proceedings of said  
9 meeting, and that the foregoing is a true and  
10 correct transcript of her shorthand notes so taken  
11 as aforesaid, and contains the excerpts of  
12 proceedings given at said meeting.

13

14

\_\_\_\_\_

Certified Shorthand Reporter

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

<p style="text-align: center;"><b>A</b></p> <p><b>AALR's</b> 51:8  <b>AARP</b> 24:9  <b>ability</b> 54:1  <b>able</b> 26:25 58:8              61:24  <b>about</b> 4:17 5:2              10:10 16:11 17:16              24:22 32:16,17,25              38:5,21 39:2 41:2              42:14,15 45:5,8              45:10 56:10 57:8              58:12 59:2,3,3,8              61:12,13,22 65:1              66:14 71:4  <b>above</b> 72:9  <b>above-entitled</b> 1:7  <b>absence</b> 52:12  <b>absolutely</b> 26:12,24              48:23 65:10  <b>accept</b> 8:22  <b>access</b> 8:8  <b>accommodate</b>              39:25  <b>accordance</b> 21:4  <b>according</b> 70:22  <b>account</b> 5:17 34:2  <b>achieve</b> 20:8 49:19  <b>across</b> 13:25 15:14              26:7 37:21 38:24  <b>Act</b> 4:16 5:21 6:11              6:19 10:6 14:12              51:11,20,25 52:7              52:13,23 53:1,4              53:11 54:9 55:16              55:24  <b>active</b> 22:24 24:25  <b>actual</b> 56:21  <b>actually</b> 19:5 48:10              56:19 66:25 69:13              69:16  <b>add</b> 32:24 40:6  <b>addition</b> 6:23 15:13              70:6  <b>Additionally</b> 25:18  <b>address</b> 15:22 28:3              28:17 51:10 53:22              58:8  <b>addressing</b> 59:1  <b>adequately</b> 22:15  <b>adjacent</b> 12:24  <b>administration</b>              41:25  <b>administrative</b>              38:25  <b>adopted</b> 45:11  <b>adores</b> 71:18</p>	<p><b>advance</b> 9:2 50:14  <b>advantage</b> 47:12              49:8  <b>advantages</b> 49:25  <b>advised</b> 51:16  <b>Advisory</b> 27:16              29:15  <b>advocacy</b> 25:3 53:9  <b>affair</b> 68:7  <b>affect</b> 58:14  <b>affects</b> 29:3  <b>afforded</b> 10:13              55:18  <b>aforesaid</b> 73:11  <b>African</b> 17:21 50:15              50:24 53:19 59:10              59:22 65:12,14  <b>African-American</b>              16:18 17:4,11,15  <b>after</b> 6:20 9:13              15:11 30:10 36:16              54:15  <b>afternoon</b> 29:20              30:2 56:4  <b>again</b> 4:24 8:9              24:14 26:10 29:8              29:18 30:16 38:8              38:15 42:4 50:18              56:3 59:7 71:23  <b>against</b> 34:8 37:17              52:7  <b>age</b> 53:13  <b>agenda</b> 22:14  <b>aggressive</b> 3:18  <b>ago</b> 31:15 39:3              42:22  <b>agrarian</b> 36:19  <b>agree</b> 11:22 12:2              37:23 50:4  <b>agricultural</b> 32:17  <b>Agriculture</b> 27:16              29:15  <b>ahead</b> 18:9 50:18  <b>aid</b> 34:18,21  <b>aiming</b> 59:18  <b>Airport</b> 20:21 23:9  <b>Al</b> 1:19 2:14 23:7              64:9 68:11  <b>Alderman</b> 66:17              67:24  <b>aligned</b> 23:15  <b>alike</b> 14:5  <b>allow</b> 6:19 9:21  <b>allowed</b> 3:21 25:15              67:10  <b>allowing</b> 30:1  <b>allows</b> 15:7 53:12  <b>almost</b> 17:14 42:11</p>	<p>43:11 48:19  <b>along</b> 25:24,25              39:19 43:25  <b>already</b> 55:13 69:16              69:17  <b>alternative</b> 62:20  <b>alternatives</b> 54:10              63:7  <b>although</b> 24:6  <b>always</b> 13:22 20:12              47:19  <b>America</b> 43:12              50:23  <b>American</b> 17:22              42:15 53:20 59:11              59:22 65:12,14  <b>Americans</b> 50:16,24  <b>among</b> 12:8 14:21              25:12  <b>amount</b> 3:17 37:25              56:15  <b>ample</b> 25:10  <b>Andrew</b> 41:25  <b>and-a-half</b> 18:11              39:11  <b>Angeles</b> 42:25  <b>Annexations</b> 12:20  <b>announced</b> 25:8  <b>another</b> 26:8 35:9              47:18,18  <b>answer</b> 36:16 46:3,7              63:3 70:4  <b>Anthony</b> 1:15 19:11              21:7 23:7 32:12              40:20 61:13 66:14  <b>anticipate</b> 56:3  <b>anticipated</b> 19:9              56:10  <b>Antonio</b> 43:1  <b>anybody</b> 9:14 26:22              46:24 66:7 67:21  <b>Anybody's</b> 60:19  <b>Anyhow</b> 43:14  <b>anymore</b> 21:15  <b>anything</b> 19:20 27:1              38:1  <b>anywhere</b> 68:12  <b>apologetic</b> 32:25  <b>apologize</b> 18:7 35:9  <b>apply</b> 47:15 55:17              55:20,23  <b>appointment</b> 8:7  <b>appreciate</b> 20:14              23:18,20 37:4              41:18 60:23 68:18              68:18 69:11,20              71:10 72:1  <b>approach</b> 41:22</p>	<p><b>appropriate</b> 62:23              70:16  <b>approval</b> 11:20  <b>approved</b> 41:10  <b>approximately</b>              70:12  <b>April</b> 1:3,23 73:5  <b>area</b> 3:12 5:9 14:3              16:24,25 17:2              22:12 24:20 25:23              26:7,19 34:19              35:14,19,20,24              36:21 45:23 48:23              65:21 68:3  <b>areas</b> 12:21 17:14              51:10  <b>argument</b> 49:9              56:18 57:20  <b>arguments</b> 50:4  <b>around</b> 39:6 45:10  <b>art</b> 44:11  <b>Asian</b> 16:22 17:8,22              42:14  <b>asked</b> 42:8 61:17              70:5  <b>asking</b> 62:12,22              71:14  <b>aspect</b> 65:19  <b>aspired</b> 59:12  <b>Assembly</b> 2:11 5:15              25:17,18 61:25              63:1  <b>assessment</b> 46:11  <b>assistance</b> 48:9  <b>associate</b> 19:17  <b>Association</b> 50:22              50:23  <b>assume</b> 32:19 36:4              57:10  <b>assuming</b> 52:16  <b>attempts</b> 51:12  <b>attend</b> 57:10  <b>attending</b> 3:9 17:24  <b>attention</b> 72:2  <b>audience</b> 58:24  <b>Augustyniak</b> 50:10  <b>availability</b> 25:9  <b>available</b> 7:25 20:13              27:12 54:7,17,21  <b>Avenue</b> 26:5,9 38:1  <b>aware</b> 9:19 22:23              55:15 56:18</p>	<p>69:24  <b>background</b> 10:5              21:2 37:10  <b>bad</b> 18:13 47:3  <b>balance</b> 47:12,25  <b>Balandic</b> 8:5 60:10  <b>Balich</b> 41:3  <b>Bar</b> 50:22,22  <b>Barbara</b> 1:12 2:8              18:5 24:4,18 50:9  <b>Bartlett</b> 55:19  <b>based</b> 11:1 35:24              56:16  <b>baseline</b> 54:16  <b>bashful</b> 5:2  <b>basic</b> 55:23  <b>basically</b> 40:10  <b>basis</b> 14:16  <b>bear</b> 53:9  <b>Beautification</b>              29:13 38:15  <b>before</b> 19:13 25:17              35:7 37:6 38:9              49:10 57:9 58:7              62:5,8 66:11              71:22  <b>began</b> 64:11  <b>begin</b> 8:24  <b>behalf</b> 20:22 50:24  <b>being</b> 4:13 5:7 15:8              18:7,10 19:12              22:22 23:3,10,14              30:17 37:20 49:6              65:21 68:19 71:23              73:5  <b>believe</b> 5:1 9:23              30:7 39:21 41:3              41:23 42:20 49:6              51:19 55:1,21              56:24 58:15 62:4  <b>bell</b> 59:24  <b>Bellar</b> 50:10  <b>benchmarks</b> 70:10  <b>besides</b> 48:9  <b>best</b> 15:20 54:7,17  <b>better</b> 5:1 43:21              47:5 57:4  <b>between</b> 21:19              43:17 44:1 45:22              63:5  <b>bias</b> 37:17  <b>big</b> 26:9  <b>biggest</b> 30:4  <b>bill</b> 14:19 23:8 48:6              55:9 56:20 60:24  <b>bit</b> 71:1  <b>black</b> 42:12 45:9,12              45:12,14 50:22</p>
--	--	--	--	--

<p>51:9,12 52:8,9,10 52:18,24 53:5,12 53:23,25 67:4 <b>blacks</b> 52:13 54:23 <b>black-preferred</b> 52:20,22 <b>blessed</b> 44:9 <b>blessing</b> 69:10 71:15 <b>block</b> 26:9,10 39:10 68:21 <b>blocks</b> 16:5 20:7 26:4,5,11,19 71:24 <b>block-by-block</b> 11:4 <b>Bloom</b> 38:25 <b>blown</b> 25:22 <b>blue</b> 43:11 66:17 <b>board</b> 31:16 33:15 34:6,9 36:3,5,5,7 36:24,25 37:17,22 37:25 43:13 68:24 <b>Bob</b> 1:20 2:15 67:1 <b>Bolingbrook</b> 36:21 <b>Boone</b> 16:14 <b>border</b> 22:18,19,21 22:22 23:4,10 <b>both</b> 11:9 31:8 44:4 44:5 48:1 50:5 58:3 65:23 66:6 66:25 68:10 <b>boundaries</b> 3:23 7:16,17 13:6,18 13:22 25:24 37:19 40:13 <b>boundary</b> 5:15 25:25 39:16 <b>Branches</b> 28:16 <b>breakdown</b> 45:19 <b>Bria</b> 9:25 <b>bridge</b> 47:16 48:15 <b>brief</b> 9:1 10:2 29:24 41:14 61:8 <b>briefier</b> 19:9 <b>briefly</b> 9:9 10:4 <b>bring</b> 9:6,11 28:10 51:5 <b>bringing</b> 67:2,6 <b>brings</b> 15:5 <b>broader</b> 17:20 <b>brought</b> 54:15 67:5 <b>build</b> 56:16 <b>building</b> 8:2,5 20:7 20:7 37:12 38:25 60:11 68:21 71:24 <b>built</b> 48:20 <b>bunch</b> 33:12 <b>Bureau</b> 5:11 16:6</p>	<p><b>Burke</b> 1:13 2:12 44:13 47:8,11 49:3,13 50:6 61:18 62:6,10,12 62:18 63:17,21 <b>Burns</b> 38:13 <b>Burns-Westmeyer</b> 29:12 38:17,18 39:19 40:2,6 <b>business</b> 5:8,9 43:2 65:1 68:3 73:7 <b>businesses</b> 22:25 <b>Butler</b> 24:9 27:13 <b>B-u-r-n-s</b> 38:18</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>C</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>C</b> 73:3 <b>California</b> 42:25 <b>call</b> 19:13 <b>called</b> 13:13,15 37:18 <b>calling</b> 8:8 <b>Calumet</b> 23:1 <b>came</b> 9:18 27:7 34:14 38:21 49:11 49:11 57:2,5,23 58:2,17 61:16 68:7 <b>campaign</b> 64:12,21 <b>candidate</b> 15:3,6 25:4 52:20,22 <b>candidates</b> 6:13 25:14 <b>capabilities</b> 67:9 <b>capacity</b> 7:23 47:22 <b>card</b> 39:3 <b>cards</b> 50:11 <b>carry</b> 24:14 66:24 <b>case</b> 43:13 55:19 <b>casualties</b> 49:18 <b>cause</b> 72:9 <b>caveat</b> 8:20 <b>ceiling</b> 60:5 <b>census</b> 5:11,14 7:24 10:9,24 11:3,4 12:5,13 13:23 16:3,5,6,8 17:3,7 17:7 21:4 30:10 42:8 70:23 <b>center</b> 13:8 48:3,16 <b>central</b> 13:7 <b>certain</b> 22:12,21 23:10 37:25 44:19 59:23 67:9,9 <b>certainly</b> 21:12 44:2 49:9 51:19 61:2 <b>Certified</b> 73:15 <b>Chair</b> 1:12 18:6</p>	<p><b>chairing</b> 2:5 68:14 <b>chairman</b> 20:20 29:25 30:23 35:8 38:14 41:5 61:18 <b>chairwoman</b> 29:12 <b>challenge</b> 29:5 <b>challenges</b> 22:21 23:3,4 58:25 <b>Chambers</b> 49:7 <b>chance</b> 29:7,9 41:1 <b>change</b> 16:16 53:19 53:21 58:14 70:18 <b>changes</b> 10:24 62:3 63:5 <b>Chapters</b> 51:2 <b>characteristics</b> 7:5 <b>charges</b> 48:24 <b>chatting</b> 47:7 <b>Chicago</b> 8:6 16:25 18:17 21:17,20 22:3,6 23:16 24:1 24:8 29:12 38:14 44:1 48:23 51:2 65:22 73:7 <b>chief</b> 37:11 <b>children</b> 56:25 <b>choice</b> 6:14 15:3,6 25:13 <b>chose</b> 11:24 58:10 68:25 <b>Chuck</b> 50:10 <b>Cicero</b> 3:7 <b>Cicero/Berwyn</b> 3:12 <b>circumstances</b> 58:13 <b>citizen</b> 39:23 <b>citizens</b> 39:23 <b>city</b> 6:15 21:17,19 22:3 23:2,16 67:3 73:7 <b>civic</b> 51:1,1 <b>Civil</b> 42:1 <b>claim</b> 52:17 <b>claims</b> 59:17 <b>Clark</b> 44:6 <b>class</b> 43:11 <b>clear</b> 27:24 <b>clearly</b> 17:13 <b>clerk</b> 27:5 41:7 <b>close</b> 36:10 <b>closed</b> 48:20 <b>coalition</b> 14:23 15:1 15:4 50:25 52:1,6 55:15 56:1 <b>coalition's</b> 53:23 <b>collar</b> 43:11 <b>colleagues</b> 30:4 72:2</p>	<p><b>collected</b> 11:2 <b>college</b> 1:8 2:21 64:8 68:24 <b>color</b> 53:10 <b>combined</b> 59:23 <b>come</b> 2:2 15:11 20:4 22:5,11,21 24:12 27:19 32:24 41:1 48:18 50:11,14 55:2,8 61:1 65:6 66:13 68:19 70:3 <b>comes</b> 39:16 64:19 <b>coming</b> 5:2 33:12 37:9 57:15 59:4 <b>commencing</b> 1:9 <b>commend</b> 30:23 31:19 34:15,16 <b>comment</b> 25:16 28:23 64:13 <b>comments</b> 5:3 8:10 8:13 18:1 19:8 21:13 29:24 30:3 <b>commingle</b> 31:8 <b>Commission</b> 11:16 11:17,20,21 12:1 12:2 <b>commitment</b> 54:16 <b>committed</b> 48:19 <b>committee</b> 1:1 2:2,5 2:7 3:7 4:9 8:4 15:23 18:6 20:24 27:16 29:13,16 38:15 60:14 64:25 66:9 68:5,15 72:6 <b>commonly</b> 7:13 <b>communities</b> 12:22 14:1 42:9 53:5,10 56:12,13,16 57:15 69:14 <b>community</b> 7:5,7,13 10:10 14:2,8 22:18,22 23:4,11 26:21 28:4 29:3 30:14 31:5 34:18 41:25 42:6,23 43:1,3,25 45:4 48:11 55:2,3 56:23 57:2,4,5,23 58:1,15,17 59:4,5 62:2 68:6,9 69:11 <b>community's</b> 13:19 <b>compact</b> 6:17 13:2 13:22 <b>compactness</b> 13:1,4 13:5,9,11 <b>compared</b> 16:10 36:20 46:21 <b>compelling</b> 53:20</p>	<p><b>competing</b> 21:18 <b>competition</b> 42:24 <b>compliance</b> 6:20 <b>comply</b> 6:10 <b>complying</b> 15:11 <b>component</b> 15:19 <b>compromise</b> 25:12 <b>concentrated</b> 14:3 <b>concentration</b> 14:21 <b>concern</b> 21:22 22:9 22:17 51:11 56:17 56:25 57:7 62:14 69:12 <b>concerned</b> 22:4 56:14 <b>concerns</b> 7:14 8:21 21:18 23:10 29:1 37:16 53:23 54:22 56:11 58:6,12 61:22 <b>concerted</b> 63:11 <b>conducted</b> 19:6 <b>Conference</b> 28:16 <b>Confidence</b> 20:3 <b>confident</b> 4:23 <b>conflict</b> 19:24 22:5 <b>Congress</b> 10:15 <b>congressional</b> 5:16 7:20 10:19,22 11:9 12:11,23 26:17 42:2 55:17 55:20,24 <b>congressmen</b> 47:4 <b>connected</b> 12:20,24 <b>consensus</b> 63:9 <b>consider</b> 7:22 14:22 35:15,20 <b>considerably</b> 71:7 <b>consideration</b> 4:4 4:14 15:23 28:25 30:11 65:8 <b>considerations</b> 4:15 34:1 51:13 58:3 70:15 <b>considered</b> 37:2 <b>considering</b> 7:1 15:24 20:24 <b>consist</b> 11:17 <b>consistency</b> 53:17 <b>consistent</b> 52:3 <b>Constance</b> 21:6 <b>constituent</b> 53:8 <b>constitute</b> 11:20 52:14 53:13 54:24 <b>Constitution</b> 5:13 6:6,16 10:16 11:2 52:5</p>
--	---	---	--	---

<p><b>Constitutional</b> 6:21 11:13 15:12 <b>constricting</b> 54:1 <b>construction</b> 35:18 <b>contain</b> 12:11 <b>contains</b> 73:11 <b>content</b> 19:7 <b>contiguous</b> 6:18 12:18 13:22 31:14 <b>continuance</b> 53:12 <b>continuing</b> 45:20 <b>continuous</b> 31:10 <b>contribute</b> 57:22 <b>contributing</b> 14:7 <b>control</b> 52:11 54:1 <b>conundrum</b> 59:22 <b>conversation</b> 70:8 <b>conviction</b> 58:9 <b>Cook</b> 3:5 43:7 50:21 <b>copy</b> 8:23 23:21 27:6 <b>core</b> 13:7 <b>correct</b> 20:4 32:20 32:21 33:16 60:9 60:14 73:10 <b>correctly</b> 30:24 <b>council</b> 34:21 <b>counsel</b> 49:4 62:13 <b>count</b> 55:6 60:25 <b>counted</b> 57:9 <b>counties</b> 12:21 16:12 43:7 57:15 <b>counting</b> 55:1,14 <b>countless</b> 6:24 <b>counts</b> 47:23 <b>county</b> 3:5 13:20 16:14 31:16 33:15 34:6,9 35:13 36:2 36:3,5,5,7,19,22 36:24,24 37:9,11 37:16,21,24 39:24 47:25 50:22 58:7 64:15,19,24 65:15 73:3 <b>couple</b> 54:22 63:15 <b>course</b> 41:7 42:10 52:9 54:19 <b>court</b> 10:18 11:23 18:25 23:21 24:15 26:2,3 29:5,18 50:19 51:18 53:16 66:19 73:6 <b>courtesy</b> 61:9 <b>cover</b> 71:3 <b>covered</b> 16:1 <b>covers</b> 30:14 <b>co-president</b> 24:5 <b>cracking</b> 52:8,8</p>	<p><b>create</b> 19:24 51:25 52:2 54:9,10,11 <b>created</b> 7:23 <b>creating</b> 11:14 14:23 15:19 <b>Crete</b> 18:15 19:5 <b>criteria</b> 13:4 <b>crosses</b> 48:15 <b>crossing</b> 47:16 <b>crossover</b> 14:23,25 15:2 51:25 52:19 <b>CSR</b> 1:23 <b>culturally</b> 14:4 <b>curiosity</b> 45:2 <b>curious</b> 32:15 46:4 <b>current</b> 7:15 21:11 22:8 23:6 53:7,19 <b>currently</b> 6:3 21:5 24:19 29:21 32:22 67:7 <b>Currie</b> 1:12 2:8 4:21 18:5,6 20:10 23:19,25 27:3,9 27:21 28:5,20 29:6 30:17 33:18 34:25 35:3,6 37:6 38:8,12 39:14 40:22 41:12,15,18 44:23 46:6,24 50:8 51:17 56:5 58:20 60:15,18 61:6,9,11,16,18 63:23 64:5 65:3 66:1,18,21,24 67:16,25 68:14,17 69:1,22 71:21</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>D</b></p> <p><b>Daniels</b> 22:23 23:5 <b>data</b> 8:19 11:2 12:5 13:23 16:3,7 25:9 54:7,17,20 62:4 63:9,15 70:23 <b>date</b> 72:10 <b>Dave's</b> 39:18 <b>David</b> 24:7 27:12 <b>Davis</b> 1:14 2:13 28:22,23 31:21 45:1,2 46:4 58:20 58:21 60:7,12,22 64:10 65:4,5,11 65:25 67:1 68:10 69:8 70:1,2 <b>day</b> 49:25 65:19 <b>days</b> 62:11 63:3,11 63:15,16 <b>deadline</b> 11:13 <b>deal</b> 19:18,25</p>	<p><b>debate</b> 57:19 <b>debated</b> 59:5 <b>decade</b> 5:11 16:16 17:9 <b>December</b> 11:2 <b>decide</b> 20:11 <b>decisions</b> 25:20 <b>decrease</b> 17:9 <b>decreased</b> 17:2 <b>defeat</b> 56:19 <b>defeated</b> 55:10 <b>defensible</b> 59:16 <b>define</b> 13:1 44:13 <b>defined</b> 42:3 <b>defines</b> 13:4 <b>definitely</b> 34:3 60:22 <b>delivered</b> 11:3 <b>DeLUCA</b> 1:15 19:11 21:7 23:7 32:12 34:17 66:14 <b>DeLuca's</b> 34:24 <b>democracy</b> 68:21 71:24 <b>democratic</b> 33:15 47:9 49:5 <b>democrats</b> 33:25 <b>demographers</b> 45:17 <b>demographic</b> 7:3 <b>Demographically</b> 16:15 <b>demographics</b> 32:15 40:7 <b>demonstrate</b> 52:18 58:24 <b>Dennis</b> 2:14 <b>deprived</b> 49:25 <b>describe</b> 32:14 <b>described</b> 6:22 <b>describing</b> 25:20 <b>desire</b> 9:2 71:10 <b>desires</b> 3:11 <b>despite</b> 17:12 <b>determination</b> 70:20 <b>determinative</b> 63:4 <b>determining</b> 54:8 <b>Deutsche</b> 27:15 29:15 <b>Deutsche</b> 30:21,21 30:22,25 31:22 32:2,7,11,21 33:17 34:3 35:2,5 35:10 36:1,15,23 37:5,8,23 38:11 <b>Deutsches</b> 33:8 <b>development</b> 32:23</p>	<p>37:11 42:23 48:21 <b>Dexter</b> 66:16 <b>differ</b> 36:23 <b>different</b> 13:2 26:15 30:25 31:12 41:22 71:7 <b>difficult</b> 12:25 33:4 49:19 <b>diluting</b> 52:9 <b>dilution</b> 52:17 <b>disastrously</b> 18:7 <b>discontiguous</b> 12:22 <b>discretion</b> 55:18 <b>discuss</b> 10:4 <b>discussion</b> 43:8 <b>disk</b> 8:22 <b>display</b> 15:21 <b>disproportionately</b> 54:24 <b>dissertation</b> 35:11 <b>district</b> 2:17,20,24 3:5 12:14,19 13:3 13:7 14:6 15:2,5,7 15:9 22:2 23:14 26:14 27:16,18 29:14,15,23 31:8 32:15,17,20 34:18 35:16,22,24 36:3 36:5,6,6,7,7,19,19 36:24,25 37:25 43:24 47:1 49:17 50:2 52:13 53:14 59:19,24 64:15,20 64:23 65:21 <b>Districting</b> 50:16 <b>districts</b> 5:17 6:8,16 7:9,21 10:19,23 12:6,11,16,18,23 13:13,14,15,15 14:15,22,23,23,24 14:25 15:1,1 16:3 20:25 21:6,15,17 22:10 26:16,17,18 36:13 43:5 47:21 52:1,2,11 53:20 53:25 54:2,8,13 59:9,13 64:18 65:2 69:14,21 70:11,21,22,25 71:4,7 <b>district's</b> 13:6,8 <b>diverse</b> 40:9 42:6 45:4 65:13 67:7 <b>divide</b> 14:20 23:13 <b>divided</b> 21:5,14 22:12 <b>document</b> 42:17 <b>documentary</b> 8:18</p>	<p><b>documentation</b> 15:25 <b>doing</b> 3:18 31:20 33:3,7 34:10,15 34:25 35:10 42:20 43:15 51:10 52:3 73:6 <b>dollars</b> 57:3 <b>Don</b> 40:24 <b>done</b> 9:17 12:4 63:11 67:8 <b>down</b> 9:24 22:1,20 26:8,13 35:13,17 39:6 45:13 49:11 64:19,20 <b>downstate</b> 56:23 <b>downtown</b> 36:20 <b>draft</b> 4:6 <b>draw</b> 6:8 7:22 12:5 16:3 24:10 26:25 27:14 39:15 58:4 <b>drawers</b> 3:14 <b>drawing</b> 7:16,19 31:17 34:2 57:18 59:12 60:11 61:20 <b>drawn</b> 14:16 16:4 25:16 28:2,25 37:20 62:15,25 <b>drew</b> 34:13 <b>drive</b> 8:22 <b>due</b> 8:21 56:21 <b>Dugan</b> 32:12 <b>duly</b> 73:5 <b>during</b> 34:2 <b>Durkin</b> 1:16 2:9 3:2 3:3 5:7 31:24,25 32:5,9,14 33:14 33:20 34:23 35:8 35:12 36:12,18 37:3 <b>dynamite</b> 48:24 <b>D-e-u-t-s-c-h-e</b> 30:22 <b>D-e-x-t-e-r</b> 66:20</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>E</b></p> <p><b>each</b> 9:5,15 10:20 11:23 12:14,19 40:18 47:20 59:1 <b>earlier</b> 4:20 14:17 <b>early</b> 35:16 <b>easier</b> 19:20,23 <b>easiest</b> 71:2 <b>east</b> 32:6 38:1 70:24 <b>eastern</b> 22:19 37:18 <b>easy</b> 35:12 49:16 <b>echo</b> 21:13 30:3,13 <b>echoes</b> 30:15</p>
---	---	--	---	---

<p><b>economic</b> 7:4,12 42:23 48:21 <b>economically</b> 14:4 67:7 <b>economy</b> 35:18 <b>edge</b> 45:22 <b>edicts</b> 52:4 <b>Edmund</b> 44:13 <b>education</b> 25:3 <b>effect</b> 11:12 69:15 69:17 <b>effective</b> 54:12 <b>effectively</b> 14:6 <b>effort</b> 8:3 48:19 63:11 <b>efforts</b> 53:16 64:17 69:13 <b>eight</b> 11:18 39:2 <b>Einhorn</b> 18:14 19:3 19:3 20:11 <b>Einhorn's</b> 21:13 <b>either</b> 8:8 34:1 47:3 48:20 54:20 <b>elect</b> 6:13 15:3,6 52:20,22 64:8 <b>elected</b> 21:11 44:15 <b>election</b> 15:8 52:12 <b>elections</b> 25:14 39:22 <b>electoral</b> 6:13,20 14:15 <b>elements</b> 25:8 <b>Elton</b> 40:24 <b>emphasize</b> 55:11 <b>employ</b> 45:17 <b>enclave</b> 39:7 <b>encompass</b> 34:4 <b>encompassed</b> 7:8 <b>encouraged</b> 41:23 <b>encourages</b> 24:24 <b>end</b> 5:10 15:21 17:6 49:24 59:25 60:4 71:10 <b>endeavor</b> 6:6 <b>enforcement</b> 38:5 <b>enhanced</b> 56:21 <b>enlarge</b> 20:12 <b>enlightening</b> 40:8 <b>entertaining</b> 2:22 <b>entire</b> 26:19 46:14 <b>equal</b> 6:8,12,17 10:13,20 12:9,12 49:5 <b>equally</b> 14:14 <b>equation</b> 58:3 63:13 <b>especially</b> 20:5 53:9 <b>establishing</b> 10:21 <b>establishment</b></p>	<p>68:25 <b>estimate</b> 60:1 <b>ethnically</b> 14:4 <b>even</b> 18:12 30:8 47:5 49:23 53:12 65:13 <b>evening</b> 2:1 20:19 24:17 27:20,21 50:20 64:2,3 67:23 69:5 <b>Evenly</b> 43:16 <b>event</b> 27:23 <b>ever</b> 44:9 57:22 <b>every</b> 3:24 5:11 10:23 20:3 42:7 <b>everybody</b> 34:4 48:10 61:12 62:24 68:15 71:6,19 <b>everyone</b> 2:20,23 5:5 9:21 58:6 <b>everyone's</b> 4:24 <b>everything</b> 30:15 38:5 44:13 49:2 <b>everywhere</b> 47:14 <b>evidence</b> 8:18 <b>exact</b> 70:4 <b>exactly</b> 33:20 <b>example</b> 21:21 47:14 49:1 56:23 57:21 <b>examples</b> 48:14 <b>excerpts</b> 73:11 <b>excuse</b> 21:24 <b>exist</b> 7:14 53:11 <b>existence</b> 52:19 <b>existing</b> 13:17 <b>exists</b> 48:22 <b>expect</b> 53:18 62:7 <b>experienced</b> 17:11 <b>expert</b> 25:11 <b>express</b> 34:22 <b>expressly</b> 55:17 <b>extend</b> 21:17 <b>extends</b> 22:3,20 <b>extension</b> 22:1,6 <b>extent</b> 33:24 <b>extremely</b> 3:13,20 3:25 21:23 <b>E-i-n-h-o-r-n</b> 19:4 <b>e-mail</b> 15:22 18:2 <b>e-mailing</b> 8:13 60:20</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>F</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>face</b> 28:4 <b>facility</b> 48:20 69:2 <b>fact</b> 18:10 43:10,14 44:16 58:16</p>	<p><b>factors</b> 6:24 14:7 70:19 <b>fair</b> 46:11 51:9 52:14,25 54:6 55:6,22 62:6 <b>fairer</b> 51:21 <b>fairly</b> 41:23 62:16 64:3,7,14 <b>fairness</b> 51:13 54:23 <b>fall</b> 22:13 <b>fallen</b> 16:19 <b>familiar</b> 35:14 36:1 36:2 65:18 <b>family</b> 43:4 58:10 58:11 <b>far</b> 5:23 24:8 32:3 56:13 <b>farm</b> 32:18 33:7 65:20 <b>farmer</b> 31:6,7 <b>farmers</b> 35:23 65:18 <b>farming</b> 31:9 32:18 33:2,3 <b>farms</b> 43:9 <b>favorite</b> 40:20 <b>feasible</b> 52:2 <b>February</b> 11:6 <b>federal</b> 6:10,21 10:14 12:9,17 14:10,12 15:11 54:25 <b>feedback</b> 70:7 <b>feel</b> 5:2 28:16 31:7 32:25 33:21 35:10 40:16 47:6 59:2 60:24 65:13,16 <b>feeling</b> 47:13 65:7 67:2 <b>feels</b> 33:21 <b>felt</b> 38:1 <b>fest</b> 64:9 <b>few</b> 18:19 53:25 63:16 <b>fight</b> 47:20 <b>fill</b> 9:15,19 28:7 29:9 35:7 66:21 67:20 71:21 <b>final</b> 11:20 23:12 25:20 28:2,15,24 29:2,2 42:24 55:21 <b>Finally</b> 6:18 8:12 10:8 54:22 55:15 <b>fine</b> 20:14 37:3 49:2 68:12 <b>finest</b> 48:22 <b>fire</b> 40:11</p>	<p><b>first</b> 9:3,18 12:8 18:14,19,24 19:10 34:20 48:12 52:24 69:12 70:15 73:5 <b>fits</b> 32:17 <b>five</b> 9:6 11:19 12:1 <b>flash</b> 8:22 <b>floor</b> 8:5 60:1,4 <b>Flynn</b> 1:12 2:8 18:5 <b>focuses</b> 13:5 <b>folks</b> 34:10 57:14 <b>follow</b> 13:17 20:2 33:2 <b>followed</b> 53:2 <b>following</b> 5:14 8:25 25:7 <b>force</b> 46:1 <b>foregoing</b> 73:9 <b>Forest</b> 40:13 <b>forestall</b> 54:14 <b>forget</b> 40:8 <b>formal</b> 25:8 <b>formed</b> 34:18 <b>forward</b> 2:21 9:7 24:12 27:19 41:1 49:11 50:12,15 56:1 60:23 61:3 66:13 <b>foundation</b> 20:7 <b>four</b> 5:22 11:18 18:13 42:22 45:17 47:1,5,6 57:11,11 66:8 <b>fracture</b> 30:7 <b>fractured</b> 52:24 <b>fracturing</b> 14:20 <b>frame</b> 62:7 63:14 <b>framework</b> 55:23 <b>Frank</b> 40:24 <b>Frankfort</b> 37:1,1 45:23 <b>Friday</b> 8:2 <b>friends</b> 65:17 <b>from</b> 3:1,4,5 5:24 7:1 8:2 9:3 11:14 11:18,23 13:7 15:4 18:24 19:4 19:15,21 20:19 21:10 22:1 23:6 24:9,10 27:7,11 27:13,15 28:17 30:7 31:24 32:3 38:24 39:16 40:18 44:13 45:13 48:20 52:21 55:2,7 57:2 57:3,5,16,23 58:2 58:17 60:8 66:4,9 67:18 69:6 70:7</p>	<p>72:2 <b>front</b> 9:24 63:10 <b>full</b> 11:4 72:2 <b>fully</b> 56:2 <b>funded</b> 48:7 <b>funding</b> 67:13 <b>further</b> 6:19 38:9 63:24 66:1 <b>future</b> 18:11 22:10</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>G</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>Gaffney</b> 27:17 29:11,13,20,21 30:19 <b>gain</b> 6:3 71:5 <b>game</b> 52:15 <b>gave</b> 25:22 27:5 48:14 <b>General</b> 2:11 5:15 25:17,18 61:25 63:1 <b>generalizations</b> 54:18 <b>generals</b> 33:22 <b>gentleman</b> 37:7 <b>geographic</b> 13:18 13:21 14:3 37:19 <b>geography</b> 13:9 16:6 <b>gets</b> 3:15 19:11 30:25 <b>getting</b> 32:16 37:21 70:15 <b>girl</b> 45:12 <b>give</b> 10:2 20:23 25:19 27:24 31:3 45:7 47:14 49:1 56:17 61:14 65:8 69:7 <b>given</b> 9:4 73:12 <b>gives</b> 43:21 <b>giving</b> 64:11 <b>glad</b> 68:25 <b>go</b> 3:25 11:12 18:23 19:14 39:10,12 42:3 44:6 48:17 50:18 68:12 <b>goal</b> 5:24 49:19 <b>goals</b> 20:8 <b>goes</b> 25:25 26:1,4,4 26:6 41:24 64:21 64:25 <b>going</b> 4:3,6,11,13 10:2,6 16:4 19:6,7 21:1 28:25 29:23 33:6 39:4 44:16 51:14,15 60:10 61:1,20 70:9,11</p>
---	---	---	--	---

<p>70:13,23,25 71:2 71:13 <b>gone</b> 21:10 <b>good</b> 2:1,22 3:10 4:21,22 20:6,18 24:16 27:20,21 29:20 35:3 40:4 40:11,11,11,12 46:6 48:7 49:15 50:20 64:1,3 67:23 69:5 72:3 <b>government</b> 24:25 44:14 <b>governmental</b> 21:11 43:6 <b>Governor</b> 11:12,15 14:17 22:23 23:5 <b>GPS</b> 18:11 <b>grandchildren</b> 45:13 <b>grandsons</b> 33:12 <b>gratuitously</b> 52:8 <b>gravity</b> 13:8 <b>great</b> 32:23 51:17 64:8 <b>greater</b> 54:2 <b>greatly</b> 69:11,19,19 <b>Greenwood</b> 40:24 <b>group</b> 14:2 15:3,4,7 40:16 <b>groups</b> 7:14 9:7 14:19 15:5 24:12 51:1 52:21 <b>grow</b> 70:13 <b>growing</b> 35:16 45:14,15 <b>grown</b> 42:7,11 <b>growth</b> 42:12 <b>Grundy</b> 16:14 <b>guaranteed</b> 10:15 <b>guess</b> 31:4 36:3 40:14 56:11 59:8 66:6 <b>guided</b> 6:5 54:7,17 <b>guidelines</b> 10:7 <b>guiding</b> 12:6 <b>guy</b> 40:20 <b>G-a-f-f-n-e-y</b> 29:21</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>H</b></p> <p><b>hacked</b> 40:17 <b>half</b> 26:7 <b>halt</b> 32:24 <b>Hannah</b> 71:18 <b>Hansen</b> 1:23 73:5 <b>happen</b> 45:11 <b>happened</b> 31:17 <b>happens</b> 39:22</p>	<p><b>happy</b> 18:24 33:1 41:20 66:9 <b>hard</b> 8:23 37:21 71:11 <b>Harlem</b> 26:9,10 38:1 <b>harmful</b> 55:3 <b>Harvey</b> 68:2 <b>having</b> 2:22 3:16 15:15 19:18 22:10 31:12 32:12 70:7 <b>Health</b> 48:16 <b>hear</b> 3:1,11 5:24 7:1 7:11,18 9:3 18:24 30:7 41:21 66:9 72:4 <b>heard</b> 14:7 34:24 42:21 43:8 44:2 49:7 <b>hearing</b> 1:2 3:9,10 17:20,25 38:21 <b>hearings</b> 3:17 5:19 5:22 6:2 8:17 13:24 15:14,17 31:19 <b>Heights</b> 18:17 24:2 25:23 29:13 38:14 65:22 66:5 <b>held</b> 7:13 10:18 <b>Hello</b> 2:19 9:25 <b>help</b> 15:3 23:8,9 48:1 67:15 <b>helped</b> 48:10 <b>helpful</b> 19:1 47:13 67:6 <b>helps</b> 14:20 30:7 <b>her</b> 2:8 24:6 73:10 <b>high</b> 54:24 60:2 <b>Highland</b> 39:4,10 <b>Hill</b> 50:15,20,21 51:19 56:6,18 57:17 58:13 59:14 60:10,16,20 61:7 61:8,14 62:4,9,11 62:17 63:2,20 <b>him</b> 35:2 69:4 71:18 <b>hindered</b> 13:9 <b>Hispanic</b> 16:20 17:5 17:10,16,22 42:13 45:11,15 67:4 <b>historical</b> 51:5 <b>history</b> 34:5 59:17 <b>hold</b> 5:21,23 <b>holding</b> 6:2 13:24 <b>Holland</b> 1:8 23:2 <b>home</b> 69:13 <b>homes</b> 39:23 <b>Homewood</b> 23:2</p>	<p><b>honest</b> 47:3 49:22 <b>honestly</b> 35:17 <b>Honor</b> 42:2 <b>honored</b> 68:8 <b>hook</b> 38:10 <b>hope</b> 26:24 48:4 58:23 64:17,25 65:20 <b>hoping</b> 29:6 33:13 <b>hosting</b> 68:5 <b>hour</b> 18:10 <b>hours</b> 62:9,10 63:19 <b>house</b> 1:1 2:2 10:1 11:9 12:14 13:13 23:8 30:5,12 32:19 38:24 41:6 43:15 61:16 69:5 72:3 <b>housed</b> 57:6 <b>houses</b> 39:12 <b>Howard</b> 21:7 <b>hundred</b> 44:20 <b>hurting</b> 48:25 <b>Hutchinson</b> 32:13 <b>Hupphen</b> 38:18 <b>H-i-l-l</b> 50:21</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>I</b></p> <p><b>idea</b> 53:4 71:10 <b>ideal</b> 12:15 <b>ideas</b> 15:23 <b>identify</b> 14:1 <b>Illinois</b> 1:9 3:6 5:12 5:13 6:15,18 10:1 10:13 11:1,4,7,22 11:24 13:12 15:20 16:9,15,18,20,22 19:5 20:20 22:24 24:10 25:24 27:14 29:23 42:25 51:2 51:10,11,20,24 52:6,12,23 53:1,3 53:6,11 54:9,25 55:16,24 72:3 73:1 <b>Illinois/Indiana</b> 22:20 <b>ILRedistricting@...</b> 8:14,15 18:2 <b>impact</b> 58:1 <b>implemented</b> 51:23 <b>important</b> 3:9,14,21 4:1,3,5,8,18,18 5:8 6:5 43:20 61:21 62:13 63:18 71:25 <b>importantly</b> 4:11,17 <b>incarcerated</b> 55:3</p>	<p>57:2 58:2,16 <b>incarceration</b> 58:7 <b>includes</b> 25:7 <b>including</b> 51:2 <b>inconsequential</b> 26:8 <b>increase</b> 16:11,13 17:4,12,14 25:1 <b>increased</b> 42:13 <b>Indiana</b> 22:23,25 38:3 70:24 <b>indicated</b> 5:8 9:2 21:3 60:8 <b>individual</b> 13:11 21:4 57:25 <b>individuals</b> 58:16 <b>influence</b> 14:24 15:1,7,7 52:1 54:1 <b>influences</b> 25:2 <b>information</b> 3:15 6:4 7:3 8:11,13 10:5 18:4 25:9 40:25 <b>informed</b> 24:25 <b>infrastructure</b> 56:16,20 <b>ingredients</b> 63:12 <b>initial</b> 11:8 <b>inmate</b> 56:22 57:2,3 57:5,9 <b>inmates</b> 55:1,7 <b>input</b> 3:22 4:7 21:10 25:11 <b>inside</b> 13:14 <b>insight</b> 51:6 <b>inspirational</b> 69:10 <b>instead</b> 69:14 <b>instrumental</b> 31:16 64:11 <b>insure</b> 5:25 49:16 69:13 <b>insures</b> 10:12 15:13 <b>intention</b> 5:23 9:20 <b>intentions</b> 9:16 <b>interest</b> 7:14 14:2,2 14:8 21:19 22:15 26:21 31:6 53:5 55:4 <b>interested</b> 7:2,6 9:4 <b>interesting</b> 43:8 45:20 <b>interests</b> 7:13 13:19 22:14 23:15,16 49:7 65:9 <b>interpretation</b> 57:18 <b>Interstate</b> 47:17 <b>inviting</b> 27:23</p>	<p><b>involves</b> 13:11 <b>in-person</b> 8:11 <b>Iowa</b> 65:17 <b>Islamic</b> 45:21,25 <b>Island</b> 66:17 <b>issue</b> 56:11,17 58:23 59:6 <b>issues</b> 25:2 28:4 29:1 37:20 53:9 59:1</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>J</b></p> <p><b>Jackson</b> 41:25 <b>Jim</b> 1:16 2:9 3:3 <b>jog</b> 26:2 <b>Johnson</b> 66:16,17 66:20,23,25 67:17 <b>join</b> 27:12 61:19 <b>joined</b> 4:22 14:5 <b>joint</b> 8:3 <b>Joliet</b> 36:20 <b>Jones</b> 1:17 2:17,18 2:19 21:8 23:7 69:3 <b>Joseph</b> 67:24 <b>jump</b> 29:17 66:7 <b>jumps</b> 27:2 <b>June</b> 11:13 <b>jurisdiction</b> 39:17 <b>just</b> 2:19,23 6:21 9:8 19:10,15 20:2 21:2,13,21 27:4,5 28:1 31:7,13 32:18 33:9,9,23 34:9 37:17,20 38:3 39:14 44:18 44:21 45:2 46:4 47:20 59:24 62:12 64:16,25 67:20 68:4,11 69:20 71:4,14,17 <b>J-o-h-n-s-o-n</b> 66:20</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>K</b></p> <p><b>K</b> 73:3 <b>Kane</b> 16:14 <b>Karen</b> 1:21 2:3 <b>keep</b> 18:12 21:1 23:13 29:23 38:22 40:20 71:11,12 <b>Keith</b> 41:3 <b>Kelly</b> 1:13 2:12 69:5 69:6 70:2 71:14 <b>Kendall</b> 16:14 <b>Kevin</b> 47:23 <b>key</b> 15:19 63:4,12 <b>kind</b> 19:6 31:19 33:9 34:11 37:16</p>
---	---	--	---	--

<p>37:17 39:6,9 40:17 60:7 <b>Kitzbunger</b> 50:17 66:3 <b>know</b> 13:20 27:6 30:8 33:20 34:5 35:16,19 40:5,10 42:21 44:11,12 45:5,23 46:2,14 49:13,23 59:1 60:4 61:20 63:21 64:14,19 70:4,15 71:1,12,17,18 <b>knowing</b> 19:5 <b>known</b> 14:1 58:8 <b>Kosel</b> 47:24 <b>kudos</b> 69:8</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>L</b></p> <p><b>lack</b> 7:23 <b>land</b> 32:18 <b>language</b> 14:19 <b>Lansing</b> 17:14 18:16 20:16,20,21 20:23 21:3,5,12 21:23 22:19 23:2 23:9,13,13 29:23 30:5 31:12 <b>Lansing's</b> 17:17 <b>Lan-Oak</b> 27:17 29:14,22 <b>large</b> 15:2 <b>largest</b> 16:12 42:11 43:25 44:1 <b>LaSalle</b> 8:6 <b>last</b> 17:1,9 36:13 42:10 43:1 45:17 50:19 58:8 67:22 <b>late</b> 18:7 <b>later</b> 12:2 <b>Latinos</b> 54:23 <b>Laverne</b> 24:9 27:13 <b>law</b> 10:8 12:9,17 14:10 15:10,12,13 38:4 51:21 <b>lawmakers</b> 13:25 <b>Lawrence</b> 50:15,20 <b>laying</b> 63:18 <b>Leader</b> 4:21 <b>leaders</b> 51:1 <b>League</b> 24:5,19,23 51:3 <b>least</b> 5:22 13:1 25:17 29:17 33:24 <b>leave</b> 23:20 35:7 37:6 38:9 51:18 71:22 <b>leaving</b> 18:9</p>	<p><b>Lee</b> 27:15 29:15 30:21 <b>left</b> 19:12 57:1 61:19 66:7,11 <b>legal</b> 6:23 29:5 57:13 <b>legislation</b> 14:18 <b>legislative</b> 3:23 5:16 7:20 10:19 11:1 11:15 13:15 20:24 20:25 21:5,15,16 22:14 50:16,25 51:5 <b>legislators</b> 19:18 23:6 <b>legislature</b> 4:4,7,19 10:14 11:7,15 19:21 22:12 39:15 51:25 54:6 55:11 55:23 <b>length</b> 48:17 <b>less</b> 57:11 <b>let</b> 33:22 39:14 40:4 47:14 48:4 71:17 71:18 <b>let's</b> 16:2,24 40:8 <b>level</b> 6:15 16:5 <b>License</b> 1:24 <b>life</b> 31:7 34:19 57:22 <b>like</b> 2:6,10,17 5:5 9:10,12,14 13:24 17:14 20:5 21:13 21:14 23:20 26:13 27:22 28:1 29:24 30:11,23,24 31:8 31:19 33:21,21 34:16 35:3,10,23 40:13 41:16,20 43:19,20 53:22 54:15 56:20 58:21 59:20 65:19 69:7 71:9 <b>limit</b> 9:5 <b>limitation</b> 7:2 <b>line</b> 10:25 21:24,25 22:5,6 24:10 27:14 57:17 58:4 <b>lines</b> 5:15 38:23 40:12 70:17 <b>Lisa</b> 32:12 <b>list</b> 66:11 <b>listen</b> 13:24 68:19 <b>litigation</b> 54:15,19 59:17 <b>little</b> 26:2,7 32:25 34:13 39:7,20 67:12 71:1</p>	<p><b>live</b> 3:12 25:23 32:1 32:2,2,5 35:25 40:9 44:15 45:13 <b>lived</b> 34:19 37:13 38:4,23 <b>living</b> 65:19 <b>local</b> 39:16 47:21 48:8 <b>locality</b> 55:7 <b>located</b> 8:1,4,6 <b>long</b> 36:6 38:17 <b>look</b> 2:21 10:8 13:16 14:1 16:2 16:24 25:24 27:1 28:16 29:7 42:17 59:16,21 60:23 61:3 71:7,8,9 <b>looking</b> 26:23 56:1 60:8 <b>Los</b> 42:25 <b>loss</b> 17:13 59:22 <b>lost</b> 18:8,10 21:3 36:16 64:16 71:5 <b>lot</b> 16:16 19:9,17,23 30:3,25 34:4 35:18 40:3 61:14 64:16 65:17 67:8 67:14 <b>lottery</b> 67:13 <b>loud</b> 19:2 <b>love</b> 64:9 69:19 71:15 <b>lovely</b> 69:2 <b>Lowery</b> 24:7 27:13 27:20,22 28:6,14 28:21,24 29:3 <b>Lowrey</b> 28:11 <b>lure</b> 22:24 <b>Lutheran</b> 39:2,13</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>M</b></p> <p><b>Madam</b> 29:25 41:5 <b>made</b> 7:25 34:14 49:10 50:5 54:21 64:17 <b>Madison</b> 37:12 <b>Magazine</b> 43:2 <b>mail</b> 39:3 <b>main</b> 40:14 58:15 <b>maintain</b> 53:17 64:18 65:1 <b>maintaining</b> 53:5 <b>major</b> 21:18 25:1 <b>majority</b> 3:15 4:21 11:10,19 15:4,8 45:9 47:24 52:14 53:13 58:16 <b>majority/minority</b></p>	<p>52:2 54:8,12 59:9 59:19 64:18 65:2 65:9 <b>make</b> 4:14,24 9:19 12:22 19:11,20 31:18 40:19 44:18 44:21 62:19,20 69:4,13,20 70:19 <b>makes</b> 19:23 26:1 26:12,24 <b>makeup</b> 67:3 <b>making</b> 7:25 22:24 <b>man</b> 49:15 <b>managed</b> 44:9 <b>mandates</b> 12:10 52:23 <b>many</b> 5:24 13:16 19:18 30:3,8 37:9 46:20 53:5 70:20 <b>map</b> 3:14 4:3 7:21 7:23,24 8:23 11:1 11:12,14,21,22 15:20 25:13,22 26:23 28:2,13,15 28:24 29:2,2,5 30:10 31:14,17,18 34:8,13,14,14,15 36:13,16 53:19 60:19 61:24 62:5 62:8 63:6,6 70:6 <b>mapmakers</b> 14:22 <b>mapping</b> 17:18 <b>MapQuest</b> 32:2 <b>maps</b> 7:7 8:11,19,22 11:9 16:4 25:16 25:21 40:7 42:17 45:22 56:3 60:9 60:11,13,20 61:21 62:15,19,20,24,25 63:3 <b>Margaret</b> 29:12 38:13,18 <b>marked</b> 23:23 <b>markets</b> 33:3 <b>married</b> 39:1 45:12 <b>Mary</b> 66:4 <b>Maryland</b> 55:13 <b>material</b> 27:4 <b>math</b> 59:24 <b>matter</b> 1:7 63:11 <b>maximize</b> 13:18 <b>may</b> 8:10,12 9:14 15:3 18:11 29:2 35:9 54:14 58:8,9 61:8,18 63:21 <b>maybe</b> 47:5 59:10 59:11 61:1 68:19 70:25</p>	<p><b>mayor</b> 19:4 41:8 49:13 <b>mayoral</b> 19:15 <b>mayors</b> 19:17 <b>McCarthy</b> 47:24 <b>McWilliams</b> 66:4 <b>mean</b> 32:4 34:1,11 38:4 47:20 68:13 <b>meandering</b> 36:6 <b>means</b> 12:18 19:16 45:15 52:9 70:24 <b>measure</b> 13:2 <b>mechanism</b> 60:13 <b>Medal</b> 42:2 <b>meet</b> 61:15 70:10 <b>meeting</b> 2:5,22 3:7 4:21,23 34:13 43:13 73:9,12 <b>meetings</b> 43:7 <b>member</b> 2:4 11:25 33:15 68:24 <b>members</b> 1:11 2:6 2:11 3:8 11:18,20 12:1 29:25 41:5 43:16,16 51:4 58:10 66:8 67:18 <b>memory</b> 36:18 <b>men</b> 3:11 4:9 <b>Mental</b> 48:16 <b>mention</b> 38:22 <b>mentioned</b> 24:12 34:24 55:19 57:24 <b>Metropolitan</b> 48:23 <b>Michael</b> 18:14 19:3 24:1 27:17 29:11 29:13,21 <b>microphone</b> 18:21 <b>mid</b> 37:10 60:1,6 <b>middle</b> 43:11 <b>mid-60s</b> 53:19 <b>might</b> 21:22 22:5,13 29:1 32:24 39:20 40:4 47:12 48:12 58:6 62:2 <b>Mikal</b> 18:15 20:15 20:17 <b>Mike</b> 18:16 24:2 <b>mile</b> 26:7 <b>mind</b> 59:15 <b>minimum</b> 5:23 51:8 52:25 54:5 55:5 55:21 <b>minorities</b> 6:12,19 14:21 51:22 <b>minority</b> 3:1 14:11 14:14,19,20 15:2 15:5 17:19 31:17 33:19 34:12 42:12</p>
--	---	---	---	---

<p>52:21 54:9,11,12 55:4 59:18 <b>minutes</b> 9:6 18:9,13 32:3,5 <b>mirror</b> 43:11 <b>mirrors</b> 12:9 <b>missed</b> 42:16 <b>Mitch</b> 22:23 23:5 <b>mixed</b> 35:24 65:12 <b>momentous</b> 51:20 <b>Monday</b> 8:2 <b>Monee</b> 32:7 <b>money</b> 48:8 <b>more</b> 4:11 5:1,23 11:18,19 12:25 13:11 14:21 17:13 17:18 18:4 20:13 35:15,19,22,23,24 36:9,21 37:23 39:20 41:16 46:2 48:11 56:21 57:12 61:19 64:15,23 66:15 67:7,8,12 68:6 <b>Moreover</b> 53:15 <b>morning</b> 60:11 <b>Mosby</b> 50:17 64:1,3 64:6 65:10,16 <b>most</b> 4:16,18 14:6 19:17 36:4 <b>move</b> 9:24 24:2 27:10 <b>moved</b> 39:1 <b>moving</b> 70:17 <b>much</b> 3:15 4:1 6:4 17:24 20:10 23:8 23:17 24:16 25:19 27:3 28:5 29:10 31:20 37:9 38:12 40:21,22 44:23 56:5 61:5,6 63:22 63:25 64:21 65:2 65:3,5,25 66:2 67:3 68:17 69:22 70:3 72:5 <b>multiple</b> 15:5 19:19 50:2 52:10 69:14 <b>multi-prong</b> 63:2 <b>Municipal</b> 20:21 23:9 <b>municipalities</b> 12:21 <b>municipality</b> 13:21 <b>must</b> 10:20 11:10 11:11 12:2,6,19 12:23 14:1 <b>myself</b> 41:6 <b>M-i-k-a-l</b> 20:18</p>	<p><b>M-o-s-b-y</b> 64:6</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>N</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>NAACP</b> 24:8 27:23 28:12,13 51:3 <b>name</b> 2:3 3:3 9:25 11:25 18:25 19:1 19:3 20:17 24:15 24:17 27:5 29:18 29:20 30:21,24 34:24 38:16 41:13 50:19,20 64:5,21 66:16,19 67:23,25 69:6 <b>names</b> 11:23 24:11 <b>National</b> 51:3 <b>native</b> 65:21 <b>natural</b> 13:21 40:13 <b>Naturally</b> 58:13 <b>nature</b> 64:22 70:13 <b>near</b> 39:5 <b>necessarily</b> 37:18 45:4 57:22 59:6 59:14 <b>necessary</b> 63:16 <b>need</b> 26:20 48:19 59:6,23 62:8,10 62:18 63:5,7,21 67:14 70:22 <b>needs</b> 9:15 16:6 43:23 <b>negative</b> 29:4 <b>neighborhood</b> 39:5 40:15 <b>neighbors</b> 26:21 40:12 <b>nests</b> 13:13 <b>never</b> 25:3 31:18 45:3 <b>new</b> 7:17,20 10:7 11:8,14,21 12:6 15:10 23:4 25:16 26:25 39:3 55:13 64:3,7,14 <b>next</b> 12:19 24:3 27:15 40:23 41:2 50:9 53:22 <b>nice</b> 31:13 61:11 66:13 <b>nine</b> 12:1 <b>ninth</b> 11:25 <b>nobody</b> 48:24 66:13 <b>non</b> 24:23 <b>normal</b> 45:25 <b>north</b> 8:6 39:12 <b>northwest</b> 71:1 <b>note</b> 12:6 55:12 <b>notes</b> 20:6 73:10</p>	<p><b>nothing</b> 26:3 <b>noticed</b> 19:12 <b>nowhere</b> 39:5 <b>number</b> 5:24 8:9 9:1,4 54:2 70:16 <b>numbers</b> 45:5,10 49:4 70:18</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>O</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>O</b> 73:3,3 <b>Oak</b> 26:5 49:20 <b>oath</b> 73:6 <b>objective</b> 51:7 <b>observe</b> 68:8 <b>obviously</b> 37:4 54:14 57:17 70:5 <b>occur</b> 29:2 <b>October</b> 12:3 <b>off</b> 38:10 72:7 <b>offender</b> 58:2 <b>offering</b> 31:3 <b>offers</b> 25:13 <b>office</b> 37:12 39:18 44:16 <b>officials</b> 21:12 <b>often</b> 13:10 <b>Oh</b> 48:5 <b>okay</b> 24:14 27:18 38:17 60:7,12,22 <b>old</b> 33:11 <b>oldest</b> 50:22 <b>once</b> 28:15 29:8 62:24 <b>one</b> 4:2,18 6:7,7 7:25 9:19 10:21 10:21 11:23,25 12:10,10 13:12,14 15:2,15 18:23 19:16,21 21:3,17 26:9,10,14,25 27:6 30:11,14 31:4 33:11,21 43:20 45:14 46:10 46:17,19 49:18,20 57:20 61:19 64:13 66:15 67:11 70:15 70:18 <b>only</b> 8:20 15:11 19:21 21:3 32:21 49:17 62:10 66:10 67:9 <b>on-the-ground</b> 13:10 <b>open</b> 4:13 5:25 8:2 57:18 <b>opening</b> 21:2 <b>operation</b> 33:2 <b>opines</b> 4:5</p>	<p><b>opinion</b> 28:2 57:13 57:20 62:22 <b>opinions</b> 18:1 68:20 <b>opportunities</b> 14:13 25:10 <b>opportunity</b> 3:21 6:12 9:21 13:19 20:9 24:21 30:1 31:3 34:21 43:21 54:10,13 58:22 67:22 <b>oppose</b> 25:3 <b>opposed</b> 55:2 57:5 <b>opposite</b> 32:18 <b>oral</b> 9:10 <b>order</b> 2:3 12:4 <b>orderly</b> 25:7 <b>organization</b> 24:24 27:6 59:9 60:9 61:23 62:15,21 <b>organizations</b> 7:6,7 21:11 <b>organization's</b> 60:24 <b>originally</b> 19:9 <b>Orland</b> 44:1 45:22 <b>other</b> 2:10 6:24 7:4 12:19 20:1 23:3 28:20 32:19,22 37:5,16 39:1 40:18 46:21 47:20 47:21 48:10 51:13 52:3,16,21 55:13 57:20,24 58:10,11 63:8 69:4 <b>others</b> 27:11 62:21 <b>otherwise</b> 14:5 52:3 <b>ought</b> 34:4 <b>ourselves</b> 23:14 <b>out</b> 5:6 9:15,19 13:7 19:2,12 21:10 23:9 27:2,25 28:7 29:9 33:11 34:18 35:7 36:20 44:8 45:2 48:11 61:12 63:18 65:6 66:21 67:20 68:7,19 69:23 70:3,9 71:4 71:13,22 72:4 <b>outcome</b> 15:8 52:11 <b>outcomes</b> 54:2 <b>outline</b> 51:8 <b>outside</b> 41:9 58:10 <b>outstanding</b> 42:23 43:3 <b>outweighed</b> 56:25 <b>over</b> 5:18 10:6 16:16 17:9 26:5,9</p>	<p>26:10 39:7 44:20 47:15 59:6 <b>overall</b> 17:12,17 <b>overjoyed</b> 48:8 <b>overlapping</b> 43:6 <b>overriding</b> 70:19 <b>overview</b> 10:3 <b>over-concentration</b> 53:24 <b>own</b> 7:22 39:24 65:20 <b>owner</b> 42:2 <b>o'clock</b> 1:9</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>P</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>package</b> 41:9 <b>packing</b> 51:12 53:23,24 <b>Palos</b> 25:23 26:22 66:4 <b>Palos/Orland</b> 24:20 <b>pan</b> 71:13 <b>panel</b> 18:14 23:25 24:3 27:12,15,22 29:25 41:2 50:9 67:19 <b>Park</b> 26:5,22 27:17 29:14,22 41:7 42:25 45:3 47:12 48:3,16 49:20 <b>paroled</b> 58:6 <b>part</b> 5:19 22:2 26:21 32:16 35:17 36:22 42:12 47:18 47:18,22 48:12 58:14 <b>participants</b> 51:4 <b>participate</b> 6:12 9:21 14:14 25:10 <b>participating</b> 29:10 56:2 <b>participation</b> 5:21 24:25 68:22 <b>particular</b> 14:7 25:23 56:17 57:3 58:23 61:2 <b>particularly</b> 72:1 <b>parties</b> 9:5 43:17 44:6 54:21 <b>partisan</b> 25:12 43:17 <b>partisan</b> 24:24 <b>parts</b> 12:19 32:19 47:21 58:11 <b>party</b> 3:15 11:19,23 25:4 31:5,18 34:1 34:12 <b>Pasquinelli</b> 24:4,16</p>
--	---	--	--	---



<p>24:18 27:8,10  <b>pass</b> 11:10 39:19  <b>passes</b> 11:14  <b>passing</b> 11:8  <b>past</b> 5:18 16:16  <b>Pat</b> 41:3,3  <b>Paul's</b> 39:2,9,13  <b>pawn</b> 54:5  <b>Pekau</b> 41:3  <b>people</b> 5:24 12:16  13:16 14:3 15:20  17:1,5,7,9 19:19  26:15,18,20 31:3  31:9,9 34:5,12  38:1 45:8 47:6  50:13 56:15 57:25  63:8 70:12,16,20  71:6  <b>people's</b> 58:13  <b>Peotone</b> 36:8  <b>per</b> 59:24  <b>percent</b> 16:17,19,21  16:23 17:15 36:25  42:11,13,14,15,16  45:9 48:8  <b>percentage</b> 16:13  54:11 59:10,14  <b>percentages</b> 45:5,8  <b>perfectly</b> 47:3  <b>Perhaps</b> 47:11  <b>perimeters</b> 63:18  <b>period</b> 32:23 42:7  <b>person</b> 6:7 10:21  12:10 19:21 57:6  <b>personal</b> 61:8  <b>personally</b> 58:22  61:17  <b>persons</b> 46:20  <b>perspective</b> 60:8  <b>pertains</b> 67:13  <b>petition</b> 44:10  <b>Philip</b> 50:17 66:3  <b>philosophy</b> 44:12  <b>Pihos</b> 1:18 2:13  <b>place</b> 14:13 18:19  39:24 42:5  <b>plan</b> 11:10,11 12:2  42:4  <b>planning</b> 37:11  <b>plans</b> 14:11  <b>play</b> 6:25 15:11  70:9  <b>playing</b> 70:17  <b>please</b> 9:17 18:25  19:1 24:12 27:19  28:7 29:8 30:10  39:8 40:18 50:11  66:19,24 67:20,25</p>	<p><b>pleased</b> 31:2 42:1  45:24 66:25 68:22  <b>plurality</b> 52:18  <b>point</b> 22:5,11 44:18  44:22 48:21 66:14  70:5  <b>pointers</b> 64:11  <b>points</b> 12:24  <b>police</b> 40:11  <b>policeman</b> 46:1  <b>policy</b> 25:2,2  <b>political</b> 7:4,12  11:19 13:17 24:24  25:4 37:19 54:4,7  64:7  <b>politics</b> 33:25  <b>polling</b> 39:24  <b>population</b> 5:12,18  6:9,17 12:9,12,14  13:8 15:9 16:7,9  16:10,13,17,19,20  16:22 17:1,2,4,5,8  17:13,15,16,17,22  17:22,23 42:12,14  45:9,14,21 52:10  52:15,24 53:13  54:25 55:14 56:10  56:14,22 57:1,10  59:11,18,23 60:25  65:13,13 70:11  71:5  <b>populations</b> 10:20  10:24 12:15 14:14  17:11,19 36:13  54:11 56:13  <b>position</b> 69:4  <b>possible</b> 5:25 6:4  13:17 25:19 65:2  <b>post</b> 8:17  <b>potential</b> 21:22 63:8  <b>practice</b> 13:9 55:1  <b>Prairie</b> 64:8,15,20  <b>precedent</b> 13:3  <b>precinct</b> 38:23  39:15  <b>precincts</b> 7:8 20:6  37:1 38:22  <b>prefer</b> 19:24 26:20  <b>prepared</b> 9:8 23:21  51:13  <b>prerequisite</b> 52:25  54:5 55:22  <b>prerequisites</b> 52:17  <b>presence</b> 56:22  <b>present</b> 1:11 2:11  7:9  <b>presentation</b> 8:25  9:1,10,23 15:21</p>	<p>20:3  <b>presented</b> 4:6 20:2  49:12 59:22  <b>preserve</b> 40:15  <b>Preserves</b> 40:14  <b>president</b> 11:3  18:15 24:8,19  50:21  <b>presumptuous</b> 58:4  <b>pretty</b> 49:24 67:3  <b>prevailing</b> 46:19  <b>prevent</b> 14:13,20  <b>primary</b> 51:11  <b>principle</b> 6:7 10:21  <b>principles</b> 12:7,8  14:12 25:6  <b>prior</b> 4:3  <b>prison</b> 54:25 55:14  56:10 60:25  <b>prisons</b> 56:12  <b>probably</b> 34:5  36:25 45:10 46:22  61:1  <b>problems</b> 31:11  37:15  <b>procedure</b> 10:3  <b>procedures</b> 10:4  <b>proceedings</b> 1:6  72:8 73:8,12  <b>process</b> 3:24 4:12  5:19,25 6:13,20  6:25 10:12 11:5  14:15 15:19 16:2  24:23 25:6 34:2  46:10 49:18 51:6  53:1 54:4 55:4,12  56:2 57:18 61:22  62:14 63:2 64:7  65:8 68:20  <b>processing</b> 45:25  <b>produces</b> 25:13  <b>product</b> 53:8  <b>profile</b> 11:4  <b>promises</b> 51:21  <b>promoted</b> 25:5  <b>pronounced</b> 30:25  <b>pronouncing</b> 30:23  <b>proper</b> 18:18  <b>properly</b> 51:22  <b>property</b> 48:22  <b>proposed</b> 7:21 8:11  8:19 21:24,25  56:3  <b>proposing</b> 63:6,8  <b>prosecute</b> 35:13  <b>protect</b> 14:18  <b>protection</b> 52:7  <b>proud</b> 40:9</p>	<p><b>proven</b> 59:16  <b>provide</b> 3:22 6:11  9:16 15:17 42:1  60:9 65:14  <b>provided</b> 41:19  <b>providing</b> 5:3 28:12  <b>public</b> 1:2 3:21 4:5  5:21 7:24 8:8  13:24 15:14 25:1  25:2,11,15 54:21  70:7  <b>purposes</b> 51:8 63:8  <b>push</b> 22:24 70:25  <b>put</b> 4:25 27:5 57:14  61:24 70:6  <b>P-a-s-q-u-i-n-e-l-l-i</b>  24:18  <b>p.m</b> 1:9 8:3 72:7</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>Q</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>question</b> 28:9 31:23  35:9 37:7 61:19  63:3 67:11 69:3  70:4  <b>questions</b> 2:23 27:9  28:6,21 30:19  31:23 37:5 38:9  44:25 56:7 59:7  63:24 66:1 67:18  69:25  <b>Quinn</b> 14:17  <b>quite</b> 4:23 33:7  35:14 38:20 49:22</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>R</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>race</b> 14:16  <b>racial</b> 14:19 15:5  51:22  <b>Rae</b> 44:24,25 45:7  46:12,16,19,22  47:2,10,13 48:4,7  49:9 50:4,7,8  <b>raise</b> 43:3  <b>raised</b> 56:19  <b>raising</b> 58:23  <b>ran</b> 4:22  <b>random</b> 11:25  <b>range</b> 17:20 59:15  <b>rather</b> 23:15,24  54:17  <b>rationale</b> 25:19 63:5  <b>Rea</b> 41:3,3,5,14,16  41:22  <b>reaction</b> 25:11  <b>read</b> 9:11 41:11  51:14,24 52:22  <b>reading</b> 41:19  <b>ready</b> 3:11 9:22</p>	<p><b>realities</b> 13:10  <b>realize</b> 23:3  <b>really</b> 5:8 18:18  26:19 30:6,15  31:16 32:3 36:15  39:5 45:15,17,21  47:25 48:11,19  68:8 71:12,15  72:3,4  <b>reapportionment</b>  20:25  <b>reason</b> 53:18,21  59:5  <b>reasonable</b> 60:1  <b>Rebelotti</b> 2:14 46:8  46:9,13,17,20,23  56:8,9 57:7 58:5  58:18  <b>recall</b> 36:14  <b>receive</b> 8:18 70:7  <b>recently</b> 10:7 55:10  <b>recess</b> 72:6  <b>recognize</b> 2:6,10  <b>recommendation</b>  22:18 23:12  <b>recommendations</b>  20:23 21:9 62:19  <b>record</b> 4:25 9:17  72:7  <b>red</b> 21:25 22:6  43:12  <b>redistribute</b> 52:15  <b>redistrict</b> 10:17  <b>redistricting</b> 1:1 2:2  2:4,7 5:20 6:25  7:15 8:4 10:3,5,7  10:11,12 11:5,16  12:4 14:10 15:13  15:19 16:2 18:6  24:22 25:6 27:25  50:25 51:5,9,21  52:4,25 54:3,6,16  55:4,6,17,21,22  55:25 60:14 69:16  <b>redraw</b> 10:22 30:9  39:8 40:12,18  <b>redrawing</b> 10:25  38:23  <b>reduction</b> 14:13  <b>refers</b> 53:24  <b>reflect</b> 10:23 43:22  <b>regard</b> 54:23 55:12  <b>regarding</b> 7:15  <b>Reggie</b> 40:23  <b>region</b> 17:20  <b>region's</b> 17:12  <b>rehab</b> 68:20  <b>relate</b> 65:20</p>
---	--	---	---	--

<p><b>related</b> 25:9 57:25  <b>relates</b> 53:19  <b>relating</b> 55:10  <b>relations</b> 53:17  <b>relationship</b> 53:6  <b>relationships</b> 53:8 53:11  <b>relatives</b> 57:1  <b>released</b> 5:12 11:6  <b>relevant</b> 7:3,8,19  <b>relied</b> 54:20  <b>religious</b> 7:4,12  <b>religiously</b> 14:5  <b>rely</b> 56:13  <b>remarks</b> 18:12 20:12 21:1 23:21  <b>remember</b> 49:14  <b>removed</b> 32:3  <b>REPORT</b> 1:6  <b>reported</b> 1:23 17:8 73:8  <b>reporter</b> 18:25 23:22 24:15 29:19 50:19 51:18 66:19 73:6,15  <b>reports</b> 17:3  <b>represent</b> 16:6 35:21 36:3 41:6 46:21 56:15 68:2  <b>representation</b> 10:14 13:10 14:11 14:18 37:15 49:5 65:14  <b>representative</b> 1:12 1:13,14,15,16,17 1:18,19,20,21 2:1 2:3,9,12,12,13,14 2:14,15,17,19,25 3:2,3,4 5:4,7,17 7:20 13:14 18:5 19:13,22 20:10 21:6,7 23:19,25 24:9 26:16 27:3,9 27:13,21 28:5,8,9 28:11,19,20,22,23 29:6 30:9,12,14 30:17 31:5,21,24 31:25 32:5,9,11 32:14 33:14,18,20 34:17,20,23,24,25 35:3,6,8,12 36:12 36:18 37:3,6,7,8 38:7,8,12 39:14 39:18,21 40:3,22 41:12,15,18 43:22 43:24 44:7,14,23 45:1,2 46:4,6,8,9 46:10,13,17,20,23</p>	<p>46:24,25 47:8,11 47:17,23,24 48:2 48:3,5 49:3,13 50:2,6,8 51:17 53:7,17 56:5,8,9 57:7 58:5,18,20 58:20,21 60:7,12 60:15,18,22 61:6 61:9,10,11,16,18 62:6,10,12,18 63:17,21,23 64:5 64:9,10 65:3,4,5 65:11,25 66:1,18 66:21,24 67:16,25 68:14,17 69:1,3,8 69:9,22 70:1,2 71:16,17,21  <b>representatives</b> 10:2 22:8,8 25:12 30:6 31:13 32:10 41:6 44:3 47:9 49:21 50:3 61:15 62:1 68:10 69:6 69:15,17,19 71:15 71:20  <b>represented</b> 13:20 22:16 26:15 34:20 37:24 49:20  <b>representing</b> 35:21 46:13 49:7 50:15 65:12  <b>represents</b> 15:20 46:18  <b>reps</b> 44:8 46:15 47:1 67:1 71:11  <b>republican</b> 34:7 47:9 49:5  <b>republicans</b> 33:25  <b>request</b> 54:19 66:10  <b>require</b> 14:22 51:25  <b>required</b> 5:14  <b>requirement</b> 12:25 55:6  <b>requirements</b> 6:21 6:24 15:10,12  <b>requires</b> 5:21 6:6,11 6:16,19 12:17 14:10  <b>requiring</b> 15:14  <b>reserve</b> 28:1  <b>residents</b> 4:10 6:1 10:13 12:15 13:25 15:18 21:12 22:15 23:1 30:8 51:9 55:7 68:7  <b>resolution</b> 54:18  <b>resources</b> 7:25 59:3  <b>respect</b> 6:7 14:11</p>	<p><b>respectful</b> 40:13  <b>respectfully</b> 54:19  <b>respond</b> 27:2 62:22  <b>response</b> 62:23  <b>responsibility</b> 11:8  <b>responsible</b> 48:6  <b>responsivity</b> 11:14  <b>rest</b> 33:5  <b>result</b> 10:22 12:13 18:10  <b>resulted</b> 25:20  <b>results</b> 10:9,9  <b>return</b> 9:17 58:9  <b>returned</b> 58:17  <b>review</b> 62:19 63:19  <b>re-draw</b> 5:15  <b>right</b> 15:15 18:20 27:10 29:17 38:5 40:16 43:15 45:7 62:17 63:20 65:9 65:15 66:6 71:8  <b>Rights</b> 4:16 6:11,18 10:6 14:12 51:11 51:20,24 52:7,13 52:23 53:1,4,11 54:9 55:16,24  <b>Riley</b> 1:19 2:15 23:7 37:7,8 38:7 39:18 39:21 40:3 46:25 48:2,5 64:9 68:11 71:16  <b>ring</b> 59:23  <b>risen</b> 16:17,21,23  <b>Rita</b> 1:20 2:15 67:1 69:9  <b>road</b> 48:15  <b>roads</b> 40:11  <b>Robbins</b> 69:7  <b>role</b> 6:25  <b>roll</b> 19:13  <b>room</b> 8:1 34:5 70:14  <b>Roosevelt</b> 39:11  <b>Route</b> 25:25  <b>rulings</b> 10:18  <b>rural</b> 35:16,19,22 36:5,9,19,21 37:2 65:18  <b>R-e-a</b> 41:14</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>S</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>salutary</b> 51:21  <b>same</b> 11:18 17:17 34:7 40:10 55:18  <b>San</b> 43:1  <b>SANDRA</b> 1:18  <b>Sandy</b> 2:13  <b>satisfied</b> 52:18  <b>Saturday</b> 3:7,10</p>	<p><b>saw</b> 40:7 62:24 71:19  <b>saying</b> 44:19  <b>says</b> 40:25 43:10 73:6  <b>schedule</b> 3:18 8:7  <b>scheduled</b> 6:3 9:13 50:9  <b>schedules</b> 5:7  <b>school</b> 39:4,10,12 43:5 67:13  <b>schools</b> 40:11  <b>science</b> 44:12  <b>scientific</b> 13:2  <b>screen</b> 15:22  <b>Scudder</b> 9:25,25  <b>seats</b> 18:19  <b>second</b> 3:6 8:3 22:17,17 36:4,10 36:11 41:24 54:5  <b>Secondly</b> 26:14  <b>Secretary</b> 11:24  <b>security</b> 8:21  <b>see</b> 9:24 16:4 17:10 17:13 22:2 23:14 25:15,25 26:2 27:1 49:20 62:25 65:23  <b>Seehausen</b> 40:24  <b>seeing</b> 45:18  <b>seen</b> 16:16  <b>selected</b> 42:22 43:2  <b>self-sufficient</b> 49:24  <b>Senate</b> 8:4 11:10 12:15 13:14 14:19 30:13 32:20 43:16  <b>senator</b> 19:22 32:10 32:13 43:22 53:7  <b>senatorial</b> 26:17  <b>senators</b> 46:15 49:22 62:1 69:18  <b>senior</b> 33:11 39:23  <b>sense</b> 26:1,12,24 43:18  <b>sensitive</b> 53:4  <b>sentence</b> 57:8,11,12 57:13,22  <b>sentenced</b> 57:21  <b>September</b> 11:22  <b>series</b> 10:18  <b>serve</b> 11:25 29:22 30:6  <b>served</b> 57:4  <b>service</b> 21:24 22:5 53:9  <b>services</b> 56:20  <b>session</b> 61:2,3  <b>set</b> 25:5 59:14</p>	<p><b>settle</b> 65:23  <b>settled</b> 59:10  <b>seventh</b> 8:5  <b>several</b> 12:6  <b>sewer</b> 56:21  <b>shape</b> 13:6  <b>share</b> 15:18 24:22 50:2 54:24 68:19  <b>shared</b> 62:5  <b>sharing</b> 17:25  <b>shift</b> 61:19  <b>shifts</b> 5:18  <b>short</b> 7:18 8:25 18:12 21:1 49:14 63:3  <b>shorthand</b> 73:8,10 73:15  <b>shot</b> 43:13  <b>show</b> 8:25 9:23 21:3 52:20  <b>shown</b> 10:24 17:19  <b>shredded</b> 36:17  <b>shy</b> 5:2  <b>side</b> 26:3,13 32:22 39:1 48:1 49:11  <b>sides</b> 50:5 58:3  <b>sign</b> 19:7 66:11 69:23  <b>signed</b> 10:8 11:11 14:18 24:7 50:14  <b>significant</b> 3:17 17:12 53:18  <b>sign-in</b> 9:18  <b>silly</b> 39:9  <b>simply</b> 9:8 54:4  <b>since</b> 16:13 33:8 34:4 41:19 42:7 44:9  <b>single</b> 42:7 50:1  <b>sir</b> 5:4 31:25 45:3 63:25 66:2  <b>sitting</b> 58:24 68:8  <b>situation</b> 5:1  <b>six</b> 49:21  <b>slide</b> 8:25 9:23 20:3 21:2  <b>slip</b> 9:15 28:7,10 29:9 35:7 66:11 66:22 67:20 69:23 71:22  <b>slips</b> 9:20  <b>small</b> 20:5 22:12  <b>smallest</b> 16:5  <b>social</b> 7:3,12  <b>socially</b> 14:4  <b>society</b> 33:5  <b>soldiers</b> 42:1  <b>solely</b> 14:16</p>
--	--	---	---	--

<p><b>solicitous</b> 53:16  <b>solution</b> 20:4  <b>some</b> 17:18 19:19              22:5,11 23:6 33:4              37:10,14,20 42:21              43:9,12 47:11              48:10,22 49:21,25              50:13 51:3 56:11              58:9,12,24 59:15              61:21 62:2 64:11              65:19 69:7 70:5,9  <b>somebody's</b> 2:16  <b>someone</b> 28:10              57:21 63:6  <b>someplace</b> 31:12  <b>something</b> 33:23              59:2,20 61:11              68:6 70:12  <b>sometimes</b> 12:22              19:23  <b>somewhat</b> 36:24  <b>somewhere</b> 60:1,4,5              65:7  <b>son</b> 40:20 45:11  <b>sons</b> 33:1  <b>soon</b> 38:3 62:25  <b>sorry</b> 18:21 36:15              69:4  <b>sort</b> 37:10 57:17  <b>sought</b> 21:10  <b>sound</b> 67:8  <b>sounds</b> 36:2  <b>south</b> 1:7,8,8 2:21              16:25 17:6,21              18:17 23:2 24:1,8              26:3 27:23,25              39:11 68:24 71:1  <b>southeast</b> 21:24              22:4  <b>southland</b> 21:23  <b>southwest</b> 3:5  <b>space</b> 15:17  <b>speak</b> 9:14 18:20              19:8 20:9  <b>speaking</b> 16:15  <b>Special</b> 1:1 2:2  <b>specific</b> 7:11,14              63:14  <b>speed</b> 54:18  <b>spell</b> 18:25 19:1              24:14 29:18 38:16              41:12 50:19 64:5              66:18 67:25  <b>spelled</b> 20:18 30:22              68:1  <b>split</b> 43:16 49:17  <b>spoke</b> 56:10 68:10  <b>spread</b> 13:6</p>	<p><b>spreading</b> 52:10  <b>Springfield</b> 8:1 44:1              58:25  <b>Springs</b> 3:6 44:8  <b>square</b> 26:19 37:12  <b>SS</b> 73:2  <b>St</b> 39:2,9,13  <b>staff</b> 9:19  <b>stake</b> 4:1  <b>stand</b> 18:20 20:11              72:6  <b>standard</b> 12:10 13:4  <b>standpoint</b> 19:16  <b>start</b> 20:5 45:16              49:23 50:18  <b>starts</b> 24:4  <b>state</b> 1:8 2:3 3:4,16              3:18 5:22 6:1,3              10:7,14,19,20,23              11:7,9,9,10,24              12:9,11,17,23              13:25 14:9 15:10              15:12,15 16:9              19:21,22 28:13,16              30:9,13 32:13              34:11 43:25 46:10              46:14,15 47:15,17              48:13 51:2 53:7              53:16 54:25 58:10              58:11 64:9,20              65:17 67:1 69:4              73:1  <b>statement</b> 38:22              41:8,19  <b>states</b> 5:11,13 10:15              10:22 13:12 42:24              43:3 52:4 53:15              55:13,18  <b>statewide</b> 16:17,19              16:21,23 60:21  <b>state's</b> 10:3 16:10  <b>stating</b> 9:16  <b>station</b> 8:3,8  <b>stations</b> 7:24 8:12  <b>statute</b> 13:3  <b>stay</b> 33:9,13 69:21  <b>stayed</b> 17:17  <b>STENOGRAPHIC</b>              1:6  <b>stepchild</b> 38:2  <b>Steve</b> 41:2  <b>sticking</b> 35:2  <b>still</b> 33:1 42:5 43:8              44:21 55:11 64:14              66:4,5  <b>Stole</b> 18:15 20:15              20:17,18 23:23  <b>stop</b> 49:15</p>	<p><b>stopped</b> 35:18  <b>Straton</b> 8:1  <b>street</b> 1:8 22:1,1              26:3,4,8,9,10              38:24 39:1 45:13  <b>streets</b> 26:13 40:14  <b>strength</b> 49:4  <b>stress</b> 4:8  <b>stretch</b> 63:13  <b>Strong</b> 50:4  <b>students</b> 65:15  <b>studying</b> 13:23  <b>submit</b> 8:10,12 9:9              11:23 15:22 62:20  <b>submitted</b> 60:13  <b>submitting</b> 56:3  <b>substantially</b> 6:8,17              12:12  <b>suburban</b> 1:7 2:21              16:25 17:21 23:14              23:15 24:8 27:23              31:9 68:24  <b>suburbs</b> 3:5,13 17:6              21:19 28:1  <b>succeeded</b> 42:21  <b>successful</b> 64:24  <b>successfully</b> 56:19  <b>succinct</b> 30:18  <b>sudden</b> 26:1  <b>Sue</b> 66:4  <b>sufficient</b> 52:19,21  <b>suggest</b> 48:4  <b>suggesting</b> 62:2  <b>suggestions</b> 7:16  <b>suit</b> 54:15  <b>summarize</b> 9:9,12              41:20 51:15  <b>supervisor</b> 49:14  <b>support</b> 22:4 23:6              25:3 52:21 60:24              61:4 65:9  <b>supportive</b> 21:23              22:9  <b>suppose</b> 32:12  <b>Supreme</b> 10:18              11:22 53:15  <b>sure</b> 4:15,24 19:11              24:7 27:8 28:14              29:16 38:20 40:19              41:14 45:18 60:12              62:21 66:10,21,23              69:13,20 70:8  <b>Surely</b> 45:7  <b>surprised</b> 39:25              40:2  <b>sway</b> 39:20  <b>sworn</b> 73:5  <b>system</b> 29:5 67:13</p>	<p><b>systems</b> 67:14  <b>S-t-o-l-e</b> 20:18</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>T</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>T</b> 1:23 73:5  <b>table</b> 9:18 18:21              67:6  <b>tabulation</b> 7:9  <b>take</b> 4:13 7:21 16:2              18:19 27:1 28:25              29:9 30:10 36:8,8              57:19 58:22 59:6              61:8 67:21  <b>taken</b> 4:4,16 34:2              73:10  <b>takes</b> 48:24  <b>taking</b> 5:6 20:6 65:6              65:22 70:3  <b>talk</b> 32:17 45:4 47:6              61:25  <b>talking</b> 32:16 59:3,8              61:12  <b>target</b> 12:14  <b>task</b> 6:5 44:11  <b>taste</b> 33:23  <b>tax</b> 23:10  <b>tell</b> 28:12 39:21              48:15  <b>telling</b> 39:3 47:8  <b>ten</b> 3:24 5:18 10:23              17:1 31:15 42:7              42:10 57:12  <b>ten-year</b> 3:24  <b>term</b> 57:8  <b>terms</b> 37:15 58:25              59:10,12 70:10,20  <b>terrific</b> 23:6  <b>test</b> 13:11  <b>testify</b> 9:2 50:24  <b>testimonial</b> 61:14  <b>testimony</b> 7:19 8:16              8:17,19 9:6,8,9,11              9:16 15:24 20:13              25:11 31:4 37:4              51:14,15,18 55:20              58:19 67:19  <b>testing</b> 45:25  <b>Texas</b> 43:1  <b>Thaddeus</b> 1:17 2:18              21:7 23:7  <b>thank</b> 2:24,25 3:2,8              5:3,4,6 17:24 18:4              20:8,10,17 23:8              23:17,19,24 24:16              24:21 27:2,3,22              28:4,5,19,20 29:9              29:24 30:16,17,19              31:20,21,25 35:4</p>	<p>35:5,6 37:8 38:7,8          38:11,12 40:20,22          41:15 44:22,23          46:5,9,23 50:6,7,8          56:4,5,9 58:18,21          58:22 61:4,6,9          63:22,23,25 65:3          65:5,25 66:2          67:16 68:5,13,15          68:17 69:1,22          70:2 71:14,19,20          71:21,23 72:5  <b>thanks</b> 67:19  <b>their</b> 3:22,22 4:7              6:13 9:5,16 14:6              15:6,18 30:9 31:4              34:13,14 53:7              54:1 56:14 57:15              59:4  <b>theory</b> 13:5  <b>thing</b> 4:2 30:5 32:21              43:15 64:13 71:3  <b>things</b> 4:19 19:16              20:2 37:21 40:4              42:20 64:22 65:19              66:14 67:5,8,10  <b>think</b> 2:16 3:13,20              3:23 4:2,5,7 9:22              18:11 19:8,16              20:1,7 29:17 30:4              33:24 34:3 35:23              36:16,17 37:24              38:3,9 42:9 43:14              43:21 44:2,14              48:12 49:3,8,17              56:7 59:2,15              60:25 61:21 62:13              63:10,17 64:24              65:20,23,24 70:11              71:2,3 72:3  <b>third</b> 34:23 55:5              67:4,4,4  <b>though</b> 16:20 67:11  <b>thought</b> 4:16 45:3  <b>thoughts</b> 3:11,22              4:14,24 5:3 13:25              15:18 17:25 24:22  <b>three</b> 20:23 21:5,9              21:14,16 22:8,10              26:5 29:16 30:5              39:12 42:24 45:12              45:25 47:1,4              51:10 65:22  <b>through</b> 3:25 8:2              25:2 33:4,5,6,6              34:11 35:17 45:24  <b>throughout</b> 3:16,17              5:22 6:2 14:8</p>
---	--	---	---	--

<p>17:20 51:1  <b>tied</b> 63:14  <b>Tilton</b> 18:16 24:1  <b>time</b> 5:6 10:25  17:19 18:9 23:18  24:17 28:2 30:16  32:24 34:7,14,17  34:23 37:21 39:22  40:4 49:14,20  56:4 61:25 62:6  62:19,21,23 63:14  65:6 70:3 72:10  <b>timely</b> 25:7  <b>times</b> 33:5  <b>timetable</b> 25:8  <b>Tinley</b> 41:7 42:25  45:3 47:12 48:2  48:16  <b>today</b> 2:5,8,12 4:10  4:22 8:24 9:20  15:25 19:8,12  20:9,22 30:4  34:10 37:4 41:10  44:5 50:23 51:7  60:3 71:19  <b>today's</b> 17:25  <b>together</b> 15:6 43:6  47:19 61:24 70:6  <b>Toi</b> 32:13  <b>tomorrow</b> 60:11  <b>tonight</b> 35:1  <b>tool</b> 55:14  <b>total</b> 16:8,10,21  <b>totally</b> 18:8  <b>totals</b> 5:12 17:19  <b>tough</b> 44:11  <b>tougher</b> 70:23  <b>town</b> 26:18 30:6,7  40:9 41:24 42:21  46:14  <b>towns</b> 19:19 50:1  <b>township</b> 13:21  32:8 36:9  <b>tracking</b> 45:16  <b>transcribe</b> 8:16  <b>transcript</b> 73:10  <b>transparency</b> 4:17  5:20 15:14 61:23  67:12  <b>transparent</b> 4:12  62:14  <b>tried</b> 44:13  <b>tries</b> 39:25  <b>trip</b> 18:9  <b>true</b> 73:9  <b>trust</b> 44:16  <b>trustee</b> 18:16,17  20:15,19 24:1</p>	<p>64:8 65:6 69:6  <b>trustees</b> 41:10  <b>try</b> 70:6 71:11,12  <b>trying</b> 61:4 68:9  <b>turn</b> 72:3  <b>two</b> 7:24 11:23  13:13 14:21 21:16  25:17 26:4,11,15  26:16,16,17,19  29:17 33:1 43:7  43:15,16,17 45:21  46:14,15 49:6,10  62:7 63:22 65:22  66:8 69:18,18  71:11  <b>type</b> 4:25 35:22  58:9 67:2  <b>types</b> 59:17</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>U</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>ultimately</b> 70:9  <b>understand</b> 12:5  21:25 53:3 54:3  55:9  <b>understanding</b> 25:1  27:24 60:16  <b>undertake</b> 6:4  <b>unincorporated</b>  12:21 31:11 32:7  <b>unique</b> 7:5 41:24  43:23 53:6 67:2  <b>uniqueness</b> 44:19  <b>United</b> 5:10,13  10:15 42:24 43:3  52:4 53:15  <b>University</b> 65:17  <b>unless</b> 12:20 53:20  <b>unnoticed</b> 19:14  <b>until</b> 28:2,24  <b>upcoming</b> 61:3  <b>uploaded</b> 8:20  <b>upper</b> 60:6  <b>Urban</b> 51:3  <b>use</b> 16:3 29:4  <b>used</b> 11:5 12:5  35:13 41:23 47:4  <b>using</b> 16:5  <b>utilize</b> 55:14  <b>U.S</b> 10:17</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>V</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>variations</b> 63:5  <b>various</b> 21:10  <b>vary</b> 14:8  <b>very</b> 3:9,18 4:2,5,8  4:18,18,20,22  17:24 19:1 20:10  23:8,17 24:16</p>	<p>27:3 28:5 29:24  31:2,20 33:3,4  34:25 36:10,19  40:7,9,9,21,22  44:23 45:20,24  49:19 56:5 61:5,6  61:21 63:22,25  64:10,21 65:3,5  65:12,18,25 66:2  67:6 68:17 69:22  70:3 71:24 72:5  <b>vice-president</b>  27:17 29:14,22  <b>view</b> 48:21 55:12  61:24  <b>viewing</b> 7:24 8:12  <b>views</b> 7:11 34:22  52:6 68:20  <b>Village</b> 18:15,16  19:4 20:15,19,23  22:19 41:7 69:7  <b>vision</b> 51:8  <b>visit</b> 18:2  <b>voice</b> 6:19  <b>voices</b> 14:6 49:6  <b>vote</b> 6:7 10:22 11:19  12:10 39:10,11,12  52:8,9,17 61:17  62:8  <b>voted</b> 25:18 34:7  38:25 39:2 62:5  63:1  <b>voter</b> 7:8  <b>voters</b> 15:4 24:6,19  24:23 25:13 51:12  53:6,25  <b>votes</b> 11:11 52:19  53:24 64:16  <b>voting</b> 4:15 6:11,18  10:6 14:12 39:4  51:11,20,24 52:7  52:12,23 53:1,4  53:11,12 54:9  55:16,24 63:9  <b>voting-age</b> 52:14</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>W</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>wait</b> 28:24  <b>want</b> 2:19,23 3:8  7:1,9,11,18,22  19:10,14 20:11  33:9,23 38:2  39:24 40:4,10,15  40:15 44:18 49:19  62:20 63:14 64:13  67:21 68:9,11,11  68:15,23 69:12,20  72:4</p>	<p><b>wanted</b> 34:12 42:3  44:21 46:3 55:11  68:4,13,16 71:17  <b>wants</b> 18:23 66:7,13  <b>War</b> 42:1  <b>Ward</b> 66:17 68:3  <b>Washington's</b> 33:22  <b>wasn't</b> 38:20  <b>water</b> 12:20 56:20  <b>way</b> 2:8 21:2,21  22:20 29:4 40:17  42:20 43:23 44:4  44:6 45:16,24  47:2 49:16 57:20  60:25 71:8  <b>ways</b> 13:2,18 31:1  48:10 65:23  <b>wayside</b> 22:13  <b>wear</b> 43:12  <b>website</b> 8:18,20  18:3 60:17,19,19  <b>week</b> 43:2 62:8  <b>weeks</b> 25:17 62:7  63:13,22  <b>weighed</b> 49:10  <b>welcome</b> 2:20,23  5:5 60:19  <b>well</b> 3:14,19 9:24  22:22 25:6 26:15  29:3 33:3,7 34:3  34:25 36:1,23  40:3,6 41:5 42:18  56:14 61:23 62:21  65:16,21 66:6  67:1,7 69:8  <b>Wendell</b> 50:16 64:1  <b>went</b> 33:4,5,6 65:16  <b>were</b> 20:2 27:11  32:23 36:12 40:23  42:22 49:25 51:4  58:7 59:8 72:8  <b>weren't</b> 37:20 59:4  <b>west</b> 3:13 26:11  32:6 70:25  <b>Western</b> 3:6 44:8  <b>Westmeyer</b> 38:14  <b>we'll</b> 7:21 10:8 28:3  <b>we're</b> 3:16,18 5:9  31:11 32:11 33:7  35:2 40:17 41:23  43:12,17 47:22  49:2  <b>we've</b> 34:24 44:20  <b>whatsoever</b> 26:12  <b>whichever</b> 18:23  <b>while</b> 12:15 13:23  70:8  <b>whining</b> 49:2</p>	<p><b>white</b> 16:17 52:19  67:4  <b>Whittington</b> 67:23  67:24 68:1,1,23  <b>wife</b> 34:6  <b>willing</b> 68:19  <b>wish</b> 9:19 25:10  49:16 54:4 68:6  <b>withdrawn</b> 40:17  <b>witness</b> 9:5,15,15,20  28:7,10 29:9  31:23 35:7 50:11  66:11,22 67:20  69:23,25 71:22  <b>witnesses</b> 9:1,6,13  40:23  <b>women</b> 3:12 4:9  24:5,19,23  <b>wonderful</b> 2:21  44:5 45:12,21  47:4 69:9  <b>word</b> 2:18 66:8  67:22  <b>work</b> 8:3 10:1 43:6  47:19 48:1 59:25  71:11  <b>worked</b> 44:20,20  <b>working</b> 44:21  48:17  <b>works</b> 25:1  <b>wouldn't</b> 19:14 37:2  37:14 57:19 64:24  <b>written</b> 8:19 9:7  15:24 20:13 51:14  55:20  <b>www.ILHouseDe...</b>  18:3  <b>W-e-n-d-e-l-l</b> 64:6  <b>W-e-s-t-m-e-y-e-r</b>  38:19  <b>W-h-i-t-t-i-n-g-t...</b>  68:2</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>Y</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>Yarbrough</b> 1:21 2:1  2:4,25 3:3 5:4  28:8,9,11,19  <b>year</b> 5:14 14:17  42:7 43:1 44:15  <b>years</b> 3:25 5:18  10:23 17:2 25:5  31:15 39:3 42:10  42:22 44:21 45:18  48:18 57:11,12,12  65:23  <b>York</b> 55:13</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>Z</b></p> <hr/>
---	--	--	--	---

<p><b>zig-zagging</b> 26:13</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>0</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>084-004043</b> 1:24</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>1</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>1</b> 11:22 36:3,7,24,25 37:25 <b>1,832,924</b> 16:20 <b>10</b> 71:5 <b>10,360</b> 17:7 <b>100</b> 48:8 <b>108,000</b> 70:12 <b>108,734</b> 12:14 <b>12,000</b> 71:5 <b>12,419,293</b> 16:11 <b>12,830,632</b> 16:9 <b>121st</b> 26:8 <b>123rd</b> 26:6,10,11 <b>126</b> 42:13 <b>13</b> 43:5 <b>13,000</b> 26:18 <b>130th</b> 22:1 <b>14</b> 13:12 <b>15</b> 6:3 <b>15800</b> 1:8 <b>160</b> 8:6 <b>18</b> 42:11 <b>1849</b> 33:8 <b>1860</b> 42:7 <b>1870s</b> 42:3 <b>19</b> 1:3 <b>1940s</b> 42:4 <b>1960s</b> 10:18 42:4 44:8 <b>197</b> 17:15</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>2</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>2nd</b> 68:2 <b>2,000</b> 45:10 <b>2,027,578</b> 16:22 <b>200,205</b> 17:8 <b>2000</b> 16:10,13,25 35:17 <b>2001</b> 51:4 54:15 <b>2010</b> 5:10,12 10:9 11:3 12:13 16:8 17:3,6,7 21:4 <b>2011</b> 1:3 51:12 53:2 55:16 <b>204,476</b> 17:4 <b>21</b> 11:2 <b>217</b> 8:8,9 <b>217,468</b> 12:16 <b>22,000</b> 46:22 <b>23rd</b> 43:24 <b>29th</b> 2:20,24</p>	<hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>3</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>30</b> 11:13 13:1 <b>30-minute</b> 18:8 <b>31,188</b> 17:5 <b>313,633</b> 17:2 <b>32.5</b> 16:21 <b>322,839</b> 17:1 <b>34</b> 32:2,5 <b>35,579</b> 17:6 <b>38.6</b> 16:23 <b>3976</b> 14:20</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>4</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>4:30</b> 8:3 <b>4:50</b> 1:9 <b>40</b> 36:25 <b>40th</b> 44:15 <b>400</b> 45:11 <b>401</b> 8:1 <b>410,000</b> 16:11 <b>45</b> 18:9 <b>474</b> 17:9</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>5</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>5</b> 12:3 <b>50s</b> 60:2 <b>503</b> 23:9 <b>55</b> 60:5 <b>553</b> 17:16 <b>558-3036</b> 8:9,9 <b>58</b> 60:5 <b>580,586</b> 16:23</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>6</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>6</b> 16:17,19 36:6,9 <b>6th</b> 66:17 <b>6:12</b> 72:7 <b>60s</b> 60:6 <b>64</b> 59:19 <b>65</b> 59:19 <b>68th</b> 26:1,3</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>7</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>70,000</b> 45:8 <b>71st</b> 26:7 <b>72</b> 63:19</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>8</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>8,167,753</b> 16:18 <b>8:30</b> 8:2 <b>80</b> 47:17 <b>80s</b> 33:6 37:10 <b>80th</b> 27:16 29:15 <b>80,000</b> 46:22 <b>82nd</b> 3:4 <b>83</b> 25:25 <b>85</b> 42:15 45:8</p>	<hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>9</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>90s</b> 49:15,21 <b>95th</b> 22:1 <b>97</b> 42:14</p>		
--	---	---	--	--